Lifestyle

China Group Ltd.

Al fg b B & B A RAE
Stock Code &A% : 2136




01

02

04

06

17

41

Corporate Profile
REHN

Corporate Information
BEER

Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Management Discussion and
Analysis
EEE R

Environmental, Social and
Governance Report

RE - He@hERRSE
Corporate Governance Report
hEERRS

Profile of Directors

E=EN

Directors’ Report

EEeWmE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BZBMBRE

75

77

78

80

159

160

Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income

FAeRBEkEMEEKER

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

eI R

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
REEREHR

Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows

HERERER

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

A mRM T

Five-Year Group Financial
Summary

hEREMBRE

Particulars of Major Property
TEMEFT




Lifestyle China Group Limited (“Lifestyle China” or together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an established retail venue operator based in
the PRC. The Group operates two "“Fashionable Lifestyle” department
stores and a shopping mall under the Jiuguang brand in Shanghai and
Suzhou, respectively. The Shanghai Jiuguang Centre, which was opened in
November 2021, comprises a eight-storey shopping mall (including
basement floors) and two office towers and is also situated in the Jing'an
District, Shanghai. The shopping mall aims to establish a benchmark
commercial flagship complex in northern Shanghai covering diverse
business segments of premium beauty products, light luxury, restaurants,
beauty salons and fitness centres. The office towers has also commenced
its leasing activities and will bring stable cash flow to the Group in the
future.

Targeting the mid-range to upper-end consumer market in China, the
Group stands out with its appealing product and brand portfolios and top-
notch one-stop shopping experiences. The Group is committed to
optimising its product mix and enhancing its customer services with a view
to satisfy the diverse needs of local consumers in terms of shopping,
leisure and lifestyle.

In addition to operating its own retailing venues, the Group has been
maintaining a strategic equity interest in the Beiren Group, a leading
retailing group based in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, PRC. The business
of the Beiren Group includes operating department stores, supermarkets,
electrical appliances, gold and jewelry and outlets. The business
performance of the Beiren Group is important to the Group and the share
of results by the Group in the Beiren Group represents a significant portion
of the results of the Group.
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China’s economy and its retail market suffered from the profound impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the related pandemic prevention and
control measures in 2022. The impact of the pandemic was most evident
during the two-month lockdown period in April and May in Shanghai, the
backbone of the Group’s business. Repeated outbreaks severely affected
consumer sentiment, while restrictive measures on mobility such as
mandatory quarantines, temporary closures, or reduced hours of operation
for restaurants, stores, and entertainment venues added pressure on
brick-and-mortar retailers, with customers shifting their shopping habits
online.

In the face of the difficult retail environment during the year, the Group
remained committed to strengthening its position as a leading lifestyle
retailer catering for the consumption demand of China’s middle class. It
implemented multifaceted strategies in a timely manner, focusing on the
continuous optimization of store operations, the strengthening of its
product mix and VIP loyalty program, and the integration of its online and
offline retail businesses in order to further strengthen the Group's
competitiveness. In addition, its two established department stores,
Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang, as well as the new Shanghai
Jiuguang Center, adjusted their offerings to respond to the changes in
consumer demand. These strategies were becoming effective — the three
stores as a whole outperformed the brick-and-mortar retail venues in the
market during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's revenue amounted to
RMB1,127.6 million, a year-on-year decrease of 13.2%. Due to factors
including a decline in sales revenue, coupled with the Group's special
relief on guaranteed sales commission and rental waivers, the finance costs
for the Shanghai Jiuguang Center project that could no longer be
capitalized and charged to the profit or loss, and reduced share of profits
of the associate, the Group slipped into the red for the year, posting a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB24.4 million for the year
(2021: net profit of RMB143.4 million). The Board of Directors has resolved
not to declare any dividend for the year.
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Looking ahead, in light of the stable pandemic situation following the
government’s cessation of the zero-Covid policy, social and economic
activity is picking up. While concerns about the speed of business
resumption, recovery in the real estate and employment markets, and
intensifying geopolitical conflicts remain, the Chinese economy is
expected to see a gradual release of consumer demand that has
accumulated over the past few years. In addition, the fundamentals of the
Chinese economy remain unchanged and are highly resilient, robust and
sustainable over the long term. The Group remains cautiously optimistic
about China’s retail market, particularly in Shanghai, in 2023. To this end,
the Group has in advance extended the lease of the property currently
used for the Shanghai Jiuguang Department Store for another 20 years to
facilitate the department store to continue its operation until 2044.

In order to seize the opportunities created by the economic recovery
following the pandemic, the Group plans to continue to expand
experiential retailing and create a one-stop shopping, leisure and
entertainment venue providing high quality products to attract new and
old customers to shop in-store by introducing additional entertainment
and lifestyle services brands that attract customers to the stores. The
Group also plans to refine and enhance its VIP membership program with
the addition of exclusive offers, discounts and members-only benefits
aimed at deepening customer relations, enhancing loyalty, driving its
members back to the Group's retail establishments in the post-pandemic
era and increasing the frequency and size of their purchases.

Separately, the Group will further increase its leasing efforts to recruit
tenants for the office buildings at Shanghai Jiuguang Center. Leasing for
the West Tower will commence in the second quarter of 2023. Given the
gradual recovery of the office leasing market following the lifting of
pandemic restrictions, the Group is confident that the two office buildings
will provide stable cash flow to the Group.

With the government’s supportive policies driving quality economic
development in China, the Group believes that its long-term business
operations will maintain steady growth momentum. The continued growth
of the Group and the stable enhancement of Jiuguang'’s brand equity
enable the Group to take advantage of potential investment opportunities
with the aim of achieving sustainable growth and providing shareholders
with returns.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my gratitude to
the Group's management and employees for their efforts and
contributions. Their joint efforts, especially when facing the additional
pressure caused by the pandemic, are the key to the Group’s continuous
growth. Finally, on behalf of the Group, | would also like to thank our
customers, business partners and shareholders for their unwavering
support.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
20 March 2023
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Market Review
In 2022, China’s economy faced various challenges, with repeated
outbreaks of the COVID-19 epidemic that caused severe disruption to
business activities of many industries and sectors, especially the property
sector and related industries. The impact of the pandemic was most
evident in April and May in Shanghai, which went into a lockdown for two
months with epidemic prevention and control measures such as mandatory
quarantines, suspension of businesses, and reduced operating hours for
restaurants, retail stores, and entertainment venues. This has caused
immense damage to the consumption market and the brick-and-mortar
retail sector bore the brunt.

Meanwhile, consumption picked up momentarily in the middle of the year
as the epidemic eased, a new round of epidemic emerged in October in
many cities leading to lockdowns and other prevention measures being
imposed that impacted again the consumption power. In the second half
of December, the Chinese government decisively announced ending the
"Dynamic Zero" policy that provided a silver lining for a recovery of the
economy.

Notwithstanding the Chinese economy was hard hit by the Covid-19
pandemic, with the various supporting polices from both local and central
government, the gross domestic product of China managed to record an
increase of 3.0% to approximately RMB121.0 trillion for the full year, while
the total retail sales of consumer goods decreased by 0.2% as compared
to 2021.

Financial Review

In response to the difficult market conditions, the Group adopted
multi-faceted strategies, including optimizing its product mix and VIP
loyalty program, strengthening tenant relationships and expanding its

omnichannel business.
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Positioned as a mid to high-end shopping, leisure and lifestyle hub, the
Group's Shanghai Jiuguang Center ("JGC") opened for business since late
November of 2021, provides synergy to the Group's existing Shanghai
Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang department stores. As the Group's latest
revenue growth driver, JGC's revenue accounted for 21% of the Group's
total revenue during the year.

Revenue and Sales Proceeds

In 2022, the Group's revenue decreased 13.2% year-on-year to RMB1,127.6
million, compared with RMB1,299.7 million in 2021. The decline was
primarily due to the severe disruption to the Group's business caused by
the recurring outbreaks of COVID-19. If the revenue contribution from the
JGC was excluded, the Group's revenue from existing operations would
have recorded a decline of 29.6% year-on-year, compared with 15.6%
growth in the previous financial year.

The Group's total sales proceeds for the year decreased 27.6% to
RMB2,520.2 million from RMB3,482.9 million in the previous year. If the
sales contribution from the JGC was excluded, the Group'’s total sales
proceeds would have decreased by 33.3% year-on-year.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rate

The Group's gross profit for the year was RMB658.1 million and the gross
profit margin as a percentage of total sales proceeds was approximately
26.1%, as compared with RMB790.4 million and 22.7% in 2021. For the
year, the Group's gross margin as a percentage of revenue was 58.4%, as
compared with 60.8% in 2021. The average concessionaire rate decreased
to 19.3% from 20.6% in 2021.

Net Loss/Profit Attributable to Shareholders

Net loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022 was RMB24.4 million, as compared with a net profit of
RMB143.4 million recorded in 2021.

The reverse from profit to loss this year was mainly attributable to (i)
decline in sales proceeds of the Group's business operations, including the
newly opened JGC, amid the stringent epidemic control measures, as well
as rental and guaranteed sales commission concessions provided to help
business partners to tide over the difficult times; (i) interest expense of
RMB101.5 million relating to bank loan for the JGC project being
expensed as it could no longer be capitalized following commencement of
operation; (iii) a decrease in interest income of RMB25.2 million; and (iv) a
decrease in the share of profits of RMB32.0 million from the Beiren Group,
which business was severely impacted by the pandemic in the second half
of the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 [E 575 & 2 #(&)

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group's total selling and distribution costs increased 10.3% from
RMB523.7 million in 2021 to RMB577.8 million in 2022. This increase was
primarily due to additional depreciation/amortization expenses and real
estate taxes from the JGC. As the newly opened JGC still take time to
ramp up its sales to be proportionate to its operating expenses, the
Group's total selling and distribution expenses as a percentage of total
sales proceeds increased to approximately 22.9% during the year, as
comparing to 15.0% in 2021.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's general administrative expenses decreased slightly to
approximately RMB235.9 million from RMB238.3 million in 2021.
Notwithstanding absence this year of the RMB34.8 million one-off opening
expenses incurred for the JGC in 2021, the general administrative
expenses was weighed by the additional RMB39.2 million of depreciation
charge following commencement of operation of the JGC. Other general
administrative expenses remained stable.

Staff Costs
Staff costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) edged up 0.7% to
approximately RMB192.7million from RMB191.3 million in 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of full-time staffs employed by
the Group was 1,168, as compared with 1,167 as at 31 December 2021.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Other income, gains and losses, which mainly comprises management
fees, third party payment platform fee and other miscellaneous income
received from counters/tenants, other miscellaneous income and foreign
exchange gains/losses, recorded an increase of 75.7% to RMB229.2 million
this year. The increase was mainly due to (i) full year management fee
income from the JGC; and (ii) an increase in subsidies received by the
Group from local governments of RMB36.5 million.

Interest and Investment Income

The Group's interest and investment income decreased by 49.0% from
RMB51.3 million in 2021 to RMB26.2 million in 2022. This decrease was
mainly due to a decrease in interest from the Group's structured deposits.

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs mainly comprised interest incurred from bank
borrowings. The total finance costs charged to the profit and loss account
during the year amounted to approximately RMB115.7 million (2021:
RMB27.9 million) and the significant increase was due to the bank loan
interest of RMB101.5 million could no longer be capitalized after
commencement of operations of the JGC since late November 2021. The
remaining RMB14.2 million represents finance charge relating to lease
liability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 5 3% & 5 #7 (&)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's adjusted EBITDA increased to RMB396.1 million for the year
from RMB326.4 million in 2021. For the year, notwithstanding decline in
sales and revenues due to the epidemic, the JGC has helped contributing
additional cash flow to the Group since its opening in late 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's net debt (defined as cash and cash
equivalents and amounts due from associates less total bank borrowings,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and amounts
due to joint ventures) was approximately RMB560.6 million, compared with
RMB444.8 million as at 31 December 2021. The increase in net debt was
mainly due to the decrease in the Group's cash and bank balances as a
result of settlement of construction costs payable of the JGC.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB1,609.1 million (31 December 2021: RMB1,858.2
million), of which RMB32.7 million was denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and being kept in Hong Kong. The remaining cash balance was kept in
Mainland China, of which approximately 5.5% was in United States dollars
and the remaining 94.5% in Renminbi. The decrease in cash at bank as
compared with that on 31 December 2021 was mainly due to a decrease in
revenue during the year, coupled with an increase in operating expenses
and payment of construction costs payable for the JGC.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding secured bank project
loan amounting to RMB2,240 million (31 December 2021: RMB2,340
million), which interest is calculated by reference to the benchmark lending
rate of the People’s Bank of China. The Group's debt to equity ratio
(defined as bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company) as at the year-end was 24.1% (31 December 2021: 25.1%).

On 26 December 2022, the Group entered into a new RMB3,300 million
15-year facility agreement with a syndicate of banks. This facility was
secured by the commercial podium (including the basement) of the JGC
and the RMB3,300 million was fully drawn down in January 2023, part of
which was used to repay the aforementioned existing project loan of
RMB2,240 million. Interest on this new banking facility was calculated with
reference to a few basis points below Loan Prime Rate in China.

Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries operating in
the PRC is Renminbi, in which the vast majority of the Group's transactions
are denominated. As described in the section “Liquidity and Financial
Resources” above, some of the Group’s monetary assets are denominated
in foreign currencies, namely Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 [E 575 & 2 #(&)

Given that majority of the Group’s revenue and expenses, as well as
borrowings and capital expenditure, are denominated in Renminbi and the
small amount of Hong Kong dollar cash balance kept in Hong Kong is
used for settling operating expenses outside of Mainland China, the Group
does not currently require a comprehensive foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management will monitor the Group’s foreign
currency exposure and will consider appropriate measures to mitigate any
significant potential foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's (i) property, plant and
equipment in the PRC with a book value of approximately RMB3,786
million (31 December 2021: RMB3,936 million); (i) right-of-use assets in the
PRC with a book value of approximately RMB1,620 million (31 December
2021: RMB1,671 million); and (iii) investment property in the PRC with a
book value of approximately RMB1,262 million (31 December 2021:
RMB1,292 million) were altogether pledged to secure the project loan with
remaining balance of approximately RMB2,240 million (31 December 2021:
RMB2,340 million).

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
Saved for the below transaction in respect of the tenancy agreement, the
Group had no significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals
during the year.

On 28 December 2022, the Group entered into a tenancy agreement (the
“"New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy Agreement”) as tenant with Shanghai
Joinbuy City Plaza Co., Ltd as landlord in relation to the Shanghai
Premises, located at 1618 Nanjing Xi Road, Shanghai, the PRC for a period
of 20 years from 1 October 2024 to 30 September 2044. The entering into
the New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy Agreement by the Group as lessee
required the Group to recognize right-of-use asset on its consolidated
statement of financial position in relation to the leasing of the Shanghai
Premises. The unaudited value of right-of-use asset to be recognised by
the Group under the New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy Agreement
amounted to approximately RMB1.6 billion.

The New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy Agreement is not effective until after

being approved by shareholders of the Company in the extraordinary
general meeting to be held on 20 March 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 5 3% & 5 #7 (&)

Review of Operations

During the year, the resurgence of COVID-19 in Shanghai and surrounding
cities in the Yangtze River Delta region made the operating environment
extremely difficult for the Group, as Shanghai and Suzhou form the
backbone of the Group’s business. Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou
Jiuguang, as well as JGC, were required to close or shorten their hours of
operation during certain periods of the year to comply with the
government'’s strict anti-pandemic measures.

During the year, the Group advanced its omnichannel marketing strategy
through new retail business initiatives. Riding on the online platform, the
integration of online and offline operations helped develop and expand
the consumer group for the store and effectively improving customer
satisfaction and driving sales revenue. The Group strived to enriching its
product mix during the year by introducing affordable luxury brands and
unconventional retailers and service providers such as gyms and medical
aesthetic centers to its department stores, with an aim to attracting
customers to its stores through enhanced experiential consumption.

The Group has always adopted a collaborative approach in terms of
working with its tenants/business partners. During the year, the Group
offered rent concessions and special waivers of guaranteed commissions
to retail tenant partners whose businesses were severely affected by the
anti-pandemic measures. With strong support from business partners, the
Group maintained high occupancy rates with a balanced tenant mix.

Leasing of the two office towers at the JGC, other than the commercial
podium, was inevitably affected by the epidemic to a certain extent.
Despite the sluggish performance in the overall office leasing market, the
Group actively expanded its leasing channels and managed to achieve an
occupancy rate of nearly 40% for the East Tower by the end of the year and
leasing work for the West Tower is expected to begin in the second
quarter of 2023.

Shanghai Jiuguang Center

JGC, which opened in late November 2021 with 95% occupancy that
includes approximately 400 retail brands, restaurants, supermarkets,
beauty salons and fitness center, encountered during the year suspension
of operation in April and May 2022, as well as occasional shortened
operating hours and closure of certain retail areas in order to comply with
government anti-pandemic measures.

In the face of a difficult operating environment, the retail complex
strategically adjusted its product and service offerings based on market
conditions and management believe it outperformed other shopping
facilities in the same area during the year. Promotion activities launched
during the year included retails, catering and lifestyle services and
program such as coupon campaign where customers who shopped at
participating stores could receive takeaway dining vouchers. These
initiatives in working with various tenants and restaurants proved to have
paid off, especially at times when restaurants were prohibited from
offering dine-in services. Fitness vouchers offered by the fitness center to
members who spent a certain amount in the retail complex also helped
driving foot traffic and sales.

FREPERERRAR —S-_FFRH

E E)

MR EEREFNAAEBERHEZEN - FR
COVID-19E FERETI=/ANEASHmIRRE
WAL ERCEIRIBIRERE o 28R REMN
ANA R EBA SR LBEFARETERERSR
MR AR LUBSTBTR AR REIE o

SERFRERBNTEXRRIHEE2EEE
R - RERTEHEE  BPRLFEEY
FIEHBERRBERE AR RRETNEEL
HEHER AL - REFATB N EEERA
B REAEEIABRERELBIEREXS
DEIFERTERRRGHEER - BB INER
BEANBERAERETRERE -

AEEEBFS AERH —RERBRAENT
A FAREBXINERRIEREZENTER
FatERHRHBES TR IEIREMSEHLIA
HEHBER - EFESERENET  AEEDH
ZEERRFVSNHEERRIGEEE -

EBARDOEERE NI M EZ FERE—
EREXREFE REHHRESFEHRET
BRARK SERAEBMRHEETE  RE
HEFREHE TH40%0OHEE - MAAENHRE
THBEABR-_Z_=FE_FERH -

ERBAKAHL
FEANROR S E - —E+— AEEY . HE
REQS% - P BELL0ESE RN - L8 - 1B
BHE  ERRREGHRLE - BETHRINE
BHEEER . EBAXPLBRR T 410 A
RERREEEEEIN  FRIDEEINERSE
EENHEKBASS TSR -

EEBRBNEEIRE - ZTEHARNERETR
R EHETHERKREES  EREMRE
HEHXBEFRNERAREMBEYRE - FRZER
AABELT ZHRETERERNEERERY
SEEEKEEE  PINEEFERY  £2H
BEBMNBEEIARRERINEESS - A%
BHEPREBRAEERETHERY  LEREZILE
ERRHERRBEOEME - B AETERE
REPHER - E2ENGERHERSh LM
% NEDEBARENRHEE -

n



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 [E 575 & 2 #(&)

In its first year of operation, JGC generated sales revenue of RMB232.0
million and rental income of RMB140.5 million, with average daily footfall
of approximately 26,900 visitors, a stay-and-buy ratio of 65.9% and an
average ticket price of RMB209.

Shanghai Jiuguang

Shanghai Jiuguang faced with similar headwinds with a two-month-long
store closure and sporadic anti-pandemic measures during the year. In
response to the difficult operating environment, the department store
stepped up its efforts in omnichannel marketing and made extensive use
of social media applications such as WeChat. Regular livestreaming events
was held to showcasing products online to attract the customers to visit
the physical store.

Different courses and activities, including makeup, dancing and flower
arranging classes were held for its loyal members at the department store
whenever the anti-pandemic requirements allowed. It also took advantage
of customers’ growing health awareness in the midst of the pandemic by
attracting consumers to its fitness center to prolong their stay at the
department store.

The store’s product assortment was enhanced with the introduction of
mid- to high-end, but reasonably priced luxury brands of menswear and
leather goods. During the year, cosmetics and grocery products in the
supermarket continued to outperform other product categories.

Shanghai Jiuguang's total sales proceeds declined by 38.6% year-on-year
to RMB1,406.9 million. During the year, average daily footfall decreased by
38.9% year-on-year to 25,000, while average ticket size and stay-and-buy
ratio increased by 1% to RMB436 and 10.3 percentage points to 57.4%,
respectively, as compared with 2021.

Suzhou Jiuguang
Suzhou Jiuguang was also negatively affected by the pandemic, but to a
lesser extent, when comparing to Shanghai Jiuguang and JGC.

Through partnering with in-store branded jewelry retailers to host major
jewelry shows to attracting customers, branded watches and jewelry
products continued to outperform other categories.

During the year, the tenant mix was restructured to strengthen the overall
retail mix with the addition of an aesthetic medicine center and menswear
brands with better quality and designs.

Suzhou Jiuguang's total sales proceeds for the year decreased by 22.5%
year-on-year to RMB847.1 million. While foot traffic decreased by 14.2% to
12,000 and average ticket price decreased by 6.8% to RMB514, the
stay-and-buy ratio rose by 10.7 percentage points to 63.8%. Since sales of
jewelry and watches accounted for large portion of the store’s sales, the
average concessionaire rate to was down from 16.0% in 2021 to 15.0% for
the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 5 3% & 5 #7 (&)

Dalian and Shenyang Property

The Group’s commercial properties in Dalian and Shenyang remained
vacant during the year. The total cash outflow recorded for the general
maintenance and upkeep of these properties was approximately RMB13.2
million.

Standalone Freshmart Operation

Freshmart, which sells high-quality food and confectionery, is a standalone
operation located at the Group's leased premises in Changning District,
Shanghai. Its sales revenue declined by 32.5% year-on-year, mainly due to
decline in customer traffic during the pandemic, which led to certain
tenants ceasing operations during the year.

Investments in Associates

Different from the performance achieved in the first half of the year, the
business operations and financial results of the Beiren Group, an
established Shijiazhuang-based retailer in which the Group has a strategic
stake, were dragged down by local resurgence of the pandemic in the
second half of the year. Net profit attributable to the Group for the year,
net of attributable non-controlling interests, declined by 22.6% to
RMB109.5 million, as compared with RMB141.5 million recorded in 2021.
Notwithstanding a decline in the share of profits from the Beiren Group,
the share of profit from this investment remained significant to the results
of the Group for the year.

As further disclosed on pages 126 to 129 under section "Beiren Group” in
note 17 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group has
fully impaired the entire balance of accounts receivable owed by the
Debtors. The Group understands from the management of the Beiren
Group that no progress has been made in recovering the outstanding
receivables and no further financial information relating to the debtors and
Guarantor has been obtained. Based on the information currently
available, the Group believes that the full impairment of the debtor’s
outstanding receivables made in 2019 remains the best estimate.

With a non-controlling interest in Beiren Group, the Group can only rely on
the management of Beiren Group to (i) take appropriate and necessary
actions to collect the receivables from the Debtors and/or Guarantors; and
(i) obtain up-to-date and relevant information, including but not limited to
financial information and financial position of the Debtors and Guarantors,
and the progress of legal proceedings, if any, against the Debtors and/or
Guarantors.

During the year, the Group’s Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") continued to
carry out the Company'’s plan in response to the qualified opinion, as
detailed in the Company’s supplemental announcement dated 5 May
2020, through engaging with management of Beiren Group on a quarterly
basis to obtain updates on the progress of the legal action against the
Debtor and the criminal case against the Guarantor.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 [E 575 & 2 #(&)

As of now, the Group’s CFO was not able to obtain any updated
information as all assets, records and information of the Debtors and/or
Guarantor remain in the custody of the local authorities in the PRC. As a
result, it was not possible to obtain the relevant information on the
Debtors and/or Guarantor as requested by the auditors for resolving the
qualified opinion.

As the Group only has a non-controlling interest in Beiren Group, the
Board understands the reliance on the management of Beiren Group to
take the necessary legal action and monitor progress through regular
contact with the relevant authorities. The Board is also aware of the
challenges faced by Beiren Group's management in obtaining updated
information.

In view of the above, and despite the lack of progress in obtaining the
updated information requested by the auditors in relation to the Debtors
and/or Guarantor, the Board believes that the action taken by the Group
and the management of Beiren Group represents the most appropriate
action in the circumstances. It is understood that as of the date of this
report, almost all key employees of the Debtors or companies owned by
the Guarantor, as well as the Guarantor himself, are still being detained by
the relevant local authorities and therefore no progress has been made in
obtaining further information about the Debtor and/or the Guarantor.

While the Group will continue to work closely with management of the
Beiren Group with an aim to push ahead development of the legal cases
against the Debtors/Guarantor, management of the Company is of the
view that until there is any meaningful progress or conclusion in the
criminal case against the Guarantor as taken by the relevant local
authorities, no progress could be expected in respect of the legal action
taken by the Beiren Group against the Debtors for recovering the Trade
Receivables. In light of the above, the Company is unable to propose any
other realistic and feasible actions or specific timelines to resolve or
eliminate the qualified opinion at this time.

The Board and the Audit Committee agree that, given the unique nature
of the issue and the unusual circumstances, there are no other realistic and
feasible actions or any specific timelines to resolve the audit modifications
at this time.

The auditor noted the actions taken and the difficulties faced by the
Company and Beiren Group’s management in obtaining information about
the Debtors/Guarantor over the past several years when the Guarantor and
most of his key employees were detained and all assets owned by the
Guarantor were seized by the relevant local authorities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 5 3% & 5 #7 (&)

The auditor is also aware that the Company plans to continue to rely on
Beiren Group’s management to obtain information about the Debtors/
Guarantor. However, the auditor will not be able to assess whether they
have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence as they consider
necessary until the Company is able to provide the auditor with sufficient
evidence regarding the financial condition of the Debtors/Guarantor and
details of the Guarantor’s other assets.

The Group will continue its efforts to further explore options to obtain
relevant information, including but not limited to financial information and
financial position of the Debtors and Guarantor, alongside the
management of Beiren Group. In addition, the Group will continue to have
regular contact with management of the Beiren Group to keep abreast of
the situation and to assess the possibility of recovering the outstanding
receivables from the Debtors and will discuss the matter with the auditor in
order to resolve the audit qualification issue in due course.

Outlook and Plan

Following abolition of the zero-COVID policy in December 2022, social and
economic activities in China has begun to see a revival and the pent-up
consumer demand is gradually being released. While some consumers
remained wary of shopping in person after the country’s abrupt reversal on
the anti-pandemic policy and reopening, many more chose to rediscover
the joys of in-store shopping and offline entertainment and experiences
that there saw early signs of recovery in China’s retail market during the
first two months of 2023. Despite uncertainties, including concerns about a
resurgence of the COVID-19 epidemic; the speed of business and
production resumption and its impact on the job market; tensions between
China and the U.S. as well as geopolitical instability, consumption in China,
which will be supported by favorable policies, is expected to improve in
the remainder of 2023.

The measures and policies to be introduced by central and local
authorities to boost market confidence and economic dynamism are
expected to pave the way for a stronger recovery in the second half of
2023. Against this backdrop, the Group remains cautiously optimistic that
China’s economy will remain relatively healthy, keeping consumer
confidence stable. In order to seize market opportunities and improve its
overall competitiveness, the Group endeavors to leverage the Jiuguang
brand to strengthen its positioning as department store that meets the
diverse needs of the middle class and high-spending millennials. The
Group will continue to optimize its product mix and services to cater to the
everchanging consumer demands.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 [E 575 & 2 #(&)

The Group will continue to employing experiential retail means to drive
customer footfall and sales. A cinema, a skate park and a karaoke bar have
been launched at the Group’s JGC. Different customer engagement
events, such as 3x3 basketball tournaments and themed shopping events,
including coffee festival and pet festival, will be organized for Shanghai
Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang. The Group will also team up with
renowned artists to host art exhibitions for the public. Attractive
decorations, such as hanging displays and giant props, will increasingly be
used to encourage shoppers to visit and take photos for posting on social
media platform. The deep integration of entertainment activities within the
shopping venues is expected to provide diversified experiences that will
enhance brand loyalty and attract new and existing customers to the
stores.

In addition, the Group’s VIP membership program will be refined with the
aim of the deepening engagement with its customers. Through exclusive
offers, discounts and other rewards, the loyalty program will be enhanced
to encourage its members to return to the Group’s retail establishments
post the pandemic and to entice its members to increase the frequency
and size of their purchases. Attractive rewards will be personalized for
members with the aim of promoting deeper engagement with a special
group of loyal customers over time. In addition, the loyalty program is
expected to enhance the brand equity of Jiuguang and increase foot
traffic of the stores that would eventually help build stronger partnership
with shops and tenants.

The Group will continue to enhance its online presence to better engage
customers, and to provide them enjoyable and efficient shopping
experience which in turn will promote customer loyalty. In addition to
providing customers the option to shop online, the Group will use its
digital presence to engage shoppers and to interact with them through
regular release of livestreams on new products and services to entice them
to return to the Group's physical stores.

In view of the gradual recovery of the office leasing market post the
pandemic, the Group will step up its leasing efforts and expects the two
office towers will be able to provide decent and stable cash flows to the
Group in the near future.

Benefitting from the government’s supportive policies which aim to driving
quality economic development in China, the Group’s business operations
shall maintain a steady growth momentum in the longer run. The renewal
of the lease for the Shanghai Jiuguang Department Store premises for
another 20 years after expiry of the initial 20-year lease in September 2024
is a testament to the Group's confidence in the long-term prospects of the
retail market in Shanghai. Given the continuous growth of the Group and
enhanced Jiuguang brand equity, the Group is well positioned to pursue
potential investment opportunities with the overall objective of achieving
long-term growth and bringing returns to shareholders.
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Reporting Scope

The Board of Directors (the "Board”) considers that the business of
Lifestyle China Group Limited (the "Group”) is closely linked to the
environment and society in various aspects, and we are committed to
disclosing and reporting matters that we believe are relevant and
important to the Group's mission.

Business philosophy

As a premier department store operator, we regard integrity as our core
value and we believe that the Group's presence and prosperity are
interdependent and interconnected with the society and we adhere to the
following philosophies in conducting our business:

¢ %i‘%@

Customers: our mission is to create one-stop department stores, so
that our customers can enjoy pleasant shopping experience.

Employees: our employees are our precious assets and we treat
them with fairness and respect and maintain a working environment
to unleash their full potentials.

Business partners: we do business with our partners with integrity and
fairness and in a responsible manner. At the same time, we
encourage our business partners to embrace high standards of
corporate responsibility similar to those of ours.

Community: we are dedicated to unremittingly serve and contribute
to the communities in which our business is operated.

Shareholders: we endeavour to create sustainable returns to our
shareholders.
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Governance Structure

The Board is the highest governing body of the Group. It is responsible for
formulating the management objectives, strategies, priorities and goals of
the Group in relation to Environment, Social and Governance (“ESG")
aspects and is also in charge of supervising their implementation.

The ESG Committee comprises the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
and senior members from various operating aspects, and is responsible for
the formulation, implementation and daily governance of the overall ESG
strategies of the Group.

According to the overall ESG strategies of the Group, members of the ESG
Committee are responsible for the specific formulation and
implementation of the relevant ESG objectives in relation to various
operating aspects as well as the collecting and reporting of the relevant
information. It is also the responsibility of the members to submit the
relevant performance and annual reports in relation to the ESG issues to
the Board on a regular basis. They also endeavour to constantly improve
the reporting mechanism in relation to the ESG issues, which will allow the
Board to be fully aware of the initiatives in relation to the ESG issues of
various operating aspects of the Group and their subsequent
implementation and follow-up progress, as well as the relevant
governance system and measures in relation to the potential risks of the
ESG issues of the Group.

To implement strategies in relation to the ESG issues more effectively and
monitor the relevant possible ESG-related risks, the ESG Committee will
hold regular or irregular meetings depending on the situation to
investigate, formulate and adjust the relevant strategies. Regular meetings
will be held with sub-units under the ESG Committee to follow-up on the
implementation of ESG targets on the relevant policies and standards in
relation to various operating aspects of the Group. Meanwhile, the ESG
Committee will also collaborate with the relevant departments such as the
legal and audit departments timely to assess the risks, to which the Group
may be exposed and formulate corresponding responsive and control
measures.

Being the final stage on implementing strategies in relation to ESG issues,
the ESG Committee will continuously acquaint themselves with the trends
and changes of development in relation to the ESG issues, striving to
promote an effective incorporation of the strategies in relation to the ESG
issues of the Group into the corporate’s daily decision making and
business operation. It is the belief of the Group that under the fully
collaboration of various operating levels, the efforts made by the Group
will strenuously ensure the Group having a high level of corporate
responsibility standard in relation to the ESG issues.
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Environment

Emissions

While creating social and economic value with an aim to minimising the
impact of our business on the environment, the Group dedicates our
efforts to establishing sustainable development and acting as a
responsible corporation in discharging our social responsibilities. To
achieve these objectives, we strive to take appropriate measures to ensure
that correct decisions and executions are made at all levels of our
operations.

The primary sources of greenhouse gas emissions of the Group include
electricity, water and natural gas consumption. Hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes mainly come from sewage, kitchen waste,
construction and household wastes. The Group focuses on measuring and
reporting carbon reduction results and promoting waste reduction at
source. In this connection, the Group strictly complies with relevant
legislative requirements on sewage and waste disposal, and engages
government approved professional firms to carry out recycling treatment,
so as to implement effective environmental management system
standards. Regular inspections on the Group's operations are conducted
by relevant government environmental protection authorities. Annual
government inspection on all relevant sewage and waste disposal for the
financial year 2022 was passed, which complied with government
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

KPI'A1.1: There are 7 main types of emissions including air pollutant,
kitchen waste, slop oil, household waste, domestic wastewater,
construction waste, sewage well and grease trap wastes. The total
emission and corresponding intensity in the financial year 2022 were
530,220.34 tons and 0.81 ton/sq.m. respectively.

KPI'A1.2: The total greenhouse gas emission of carbon dioxide and
corresponding intensity for the financial year 2022 were 72,739.58 tons and
0.11 ton/sqg.m. respectively. The greenhouse gas emission of carbon
dioxide from direct energy (Scope 1) and corresponding intensity were
1,204.69 tons and 0.0018 ton/sq.m. respectively. The greenhouse gas
emission of carbon dioxide from indirect energy (Scope 2) and
corresponding intensity were 71,534.89 tons and 0.11 ton/sg.m. respectively.

KPI A1.3: The total hazardous waste produced and corresponding intensity
in the financial year 2022 were 602.48 tons and 0.92 kg/sg.m. respectively.

KPI' A1.4: The total non-hazardous waste produced and corresponding
intensity in the financial year 2022 were 529,617.86 tons and 0.81 ton/sq.m.
respectively.

KPI A1.5: The Group's targets and measures to mitigate emissions for the
financial year 2022 are set out below —

a -

FRESUEZ AL B D BERSRY - &
BB - BEERMAE - AEVENIR  AUE (BF) 5K
FEERIR 5K R IR R A KSR
2020 EE  HEMEREERE D B E
530,220.34 M K 5 F 5 K0.81H °

BRENIEIE A12: 2020 HEERERE—A
{bIRABBEE RARERE 5 Rl £72,739.58M 2 &
FHKOIME - R EEER(SE) EERE
ZRALIRBERE RABERE 5 B A1,204.69ME [
H ¥ 5K0.0018M8 : HEEEEIR (#E2) )R =R
ZR iR E RABERE 5 Bl A71,534.89M8 [
F¥ 5 AK0NME -

AR E IS A1.3: 2020 N FEEFREA B EEE
BB E MAEEEE 5 Bl 5602.48ME & & 75 K
0.92RAfT ©

RABENUIEIZ A14 2020 N FEFIELEEZRE
B2YBENEREED R F529,617 86HE & & F
7 K0.81MF o

B AEIEIR A15 - 202281 IR F B AN S IR E HE
MENBRRFBHINDT —

2030 Target (compare to 2019 level) ‘@

—E=ZFARGAZR-AEKY

BERE_SREREBERE

Total emission

HERE

Emission from direct energy

EEERERE -5%

Emission from indirect energy

HE) ‘
Intensity of greenhouse gas emission of carbon dioxide (}. <7

to 0.16 ton/sq.m.
EFFT7K0.1608

to 0.0006 ton/sq.m. <> <>

2= & 7 K0.0006 18

to 0.15 ton/sq.m.

R RHE R B Z 5T 5 2K0. 1508
—  We strive to constantly improve energy use efficiency and minimise ~ —  BEUORTERFEERE AR - BRRR

carbon emission to the surrounding area during the construction
processes of environmentally friendly projects.

BEREIBEE B8R HEEEBRR
B -

—  We endeavour to use environmentally friendly products and services — ARV ESWEMES  EHFEERE

for our decoration and renovation projects in order to minimise the
creation of hazardous substance. For instance, we would request our
contractors to use environmentally friendly and energy saving
products which are approved by relevant government authorities,
especially materials such as adhesives, paints, coatings, etc., which
must be low VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) compliant.
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KPI A1.6: For the handling of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, the ~ BSRERBUIEIZ A1.6 : 20220 BFEASEREES
Group's targets and measures to reduce waste for the financial year 2022 ERBEEEZEVNF L BIEEEVELSNE

are set out below — BERABEHINET —
2030 Target (compare to 2019 level)
—B=FABU-T-NEATLR) <>><>
Intensity of the total wastes to 1.34 ton/sg.m.
BEYEERE EHFH K340
y
Intensity of the total
hazardous wastes -3% to 0.58 kg/sq.m.
FEREYNEERE EEFHAK0OS8AT
_>

Intensity of the total
non-hazardous wastes

BREBRNAERE

to 1.34 ton/sq.m.
EFFIK1.340

We set up a sewage treatment system for handling sewage in
compliance with the government'’s “Pollutant discharge standard for
urban sewage treatment plant”.

Waste prevention and management play an indispensable role in the
Group's overall environmental policy. Accordingly, the Group has
set up an effective waste management approach to ensure that
collection and treatment of waste were carried out in compliance
with relevant government regulations and would cause the least
impact on the surrounding environment. The Group will strictly
follow the relevant government requirements and enter into
disposal agreements with government approved professional firms
with relevant expertise to carry out separation, recycling and
removal of waste.

Kitchen waste mainly come from catering tenants. The Group
provides necessary guidance to the catering tenants and employees
to reduce unnecessary food waste on production and consumption.
At the same time, the Group has procedures in place on collection
and treatment of kitchen waste which are strictly in accordance with
the principles and requirements as set by the government. As
opposed to dumpling, land filling or selling kitchen waste in an
illegal manner, we will enter into disposal agreements with the
municipal city government departments or designated professional
firms with relevant expertise to carry out collection and disposal of
kitchen waste.

To improve the efficiency of the piping and drainage systems, the
Group carried out transformation and optimisation works on the
sewage pump system of the water collection wells.
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In 2022, thorough dredging and cleaning were conducted for all
sewage pipes and sewage treatment equipment at our Shanghai
store to improve the efficiency of the drainage system. Meanwhile,
in 2022, our Suzhou store has strengthened the daily inspection on
sewage pipes in order to eliminate the relevant safety hazard and
maintain the normal operation of on-site facilities and equipment,

and to ensure smooth drainage of water sources.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to minimising the overall energy consumption in
our daily operations. Through scientific management and implementing
appropriate controls in every part of our operations, we strive to maximise
the energy efficiency and eliminate the wastage of electricity, gas fuel and
water resources.

KPI A2.1: The Group's direct and/or indirect energy consumptions by type
for the financial year 2022 were 90,360,750 kWh of electricity; 557,169 cubic
meters of natural gas consumption, and 4,723 tons of steam energy
consumption. Accordingly, their energy consumption intensities were
138.33 kWh/sq.m., 0.85 cubic metre/sg.m. and 0.01 ton/sq.m. respectively.

KPI A2.2: The total water consumption and corresponding intensity for the
financial year 2022 were 638,584 tons and 0.98 tons/sg.m. respectively.

KPI' A2.3: Electricity is mainly consumed by air conditioning systems,
vertical transportation systems, general lighting, refrigeration systems,
plumbing and drainage systems, ELV system and IT facilities within the
Group's department stores/buildings. The Group's targets and measures
in respect of the efficiency of energy use for the financial year 2022 are set
out below —
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2030 Target (compare to 2019 level)
—E=ZEFHEM-E-AFKTELER)

<o

Intensity of the power energy
consumption

BEHRERERRE

to 185.52 kWh/sq.m.
-3% EFFHHK185.52F B/ )y

-~

Intensity of the natural gas
consumption

to 0.26 cubic meters/sq.m. =

Intensity of the steam energy

-5%
. to 0.03 ton/sq.m.
consumption

A £ 5 F 73 K0.03M18

RAREENERE % E2HFHK0.263 K y"

Consideration of energy saving and environmental friendliness of
equipment is an important evaluation criterion in outsourcing and
procuring new equipment for the Group. Priority has been given to
those energy saving and environmentally friendly products in our
general procurement of lighting and power equipment. Meanwhile,
energy saving and environmentally friendly related requirements are
also applied to the entire tendering process.

In 2022, the power equipment of our Shanghai store and Suzhou
store were set to operate based on actual needs in order to better
reduce energy consumption.

To substantially reduce power energy consumption, the Group is
gradually adopting long-life and lower power consumption LED
lightings in shops and office area to reduce power consumption.

In 2022, Shanghai Jing'an, Daning and Suzhou stores continued to
facilitate the adoption of LED lightings as lighting sources for the
tenants’ renovations. These stores have adopted measures such as
reasonable control of lighting in public areas and comprehensive
examination on tenants’ electricity consumption according to the
regulations on energy conservation management, in order to
monitor the electricity current control, electricity level pre-warning
and reduce electricity consumption in real time in the public areas of
the shopping mall and tenants.

As the Group strives to implement low carbon and environmentally
friendly practices, excellent performance has been achieved in
energy saving and emission reduction.

Shanghai Jing'an store launched an entire renovation project for 4
freight elevators as at the end of 2022, using new equipment with
lower energy consumption to replace old equipment with high
energy consumption to conserve energy and reduce emissions.
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— In April 2022, Suzhou store renovated the capacitor cabinets with
hidden hazards of No. 3 and No. 4 transformers to improve the
efficiency of load equipment while ensuring the safety of power
supply.

KPI A2.4: Water consumption mainly comes from sanitary facilities for our
customers and staff as well as the water-cooled air conditioning systems.
The Group's targets and measures in respect of enhancement of water
efficiency for the financial year 2022 are set out below —

—  ERINJER202254 A - $35F AT 2 R 22
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to 1.61 ton/sg.m.
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—  Toimprove water consumption efficiency and avoid wastage of water
resources.

—  In 2022, our Shanghai Jingan store engaged a professional company
to conduct a comprehensive water balance test on the water supply
system of the shopping mall, so as to prevent water wastage and
enhance water consumption efficiency. In 2022, our Suzhou store
continued to strengthen the inspection and maintenance on water
valves, water saving devices, faucets and sewer pipes in the toilets of
the building to reduce or control water leakage, so as to prevent
water wastage and enhance efficiency of water consumption.

KPI A2.5: Packaging materials used for finished products for our business
operation are not material.
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Environment and Natural Resources

The Group supports environmental protection and carries on the greening
of our operating environment. The Group also constantly assesses its
measures taken to minimise the impact of our business operation on the
surrounding environment so that appropriate improvement actions could
be taken promptly. These measures include the use of energy-efficient
lightings and environmentally friendly paper, paper usage reduction,
turning off idle lightings, computers and electrical appliances and other
facilities and equipment to save energy. The Group is also committed to
promoting the use of recycled paper and shopping bags made by recycled
paper in our stores, where feasible.

KPI A3.1: Appropriate actions are taken to manage the impacts of the
Group's operations on the environment and natural resources. We actively
promote environmental protection, formulate a number of policies and
measures to optimise the operation and office environment, strengthen
energy conservation and emission reduction management and emphasise
green operation and green office. Relevant policies and measures taken
for the financial year 2022 were as follows:

—  Implementing the Office Automation Application System. In 2022,
the Group further upgraded electronic office automation systems to
optimise office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the
use of office paper and facilitate the Group's paperless office
operation.

—  Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and recycling toner
cartridges, paper, envelope and paper files. In 2022, the Group
continued to facilitate the reduction of paper consumption at our
stores based on it actual needs. At the same time, printing facilities
are reasonably adjusted to reduce the consumption of consumables.
We adopt a centralised collection and disposal approach to handle
the centralised collection and disposal of used consumables to
avoid environmental pollution resulting from improper waste
disposal.

—  Purchasing and using recycled paper bags instead of traditional
packaging bags. To advocate environmentally responsible
shopping, the Group provides customers with paper bags produced
with recycled paper and printed with the environmentally friendly
recycling label, reminding the customers that paper bags can be
recycled. We take appropriate measures to strictly comply with
“General Technical Requirements of the Environmental Protection,
Safety and Labelling for Plastic Shopping Bags” and “Notice on
Restrictions of Manufacturing and the Sale of Plastic Bags” issued by
the country. Reduction on plastic bag consumption was achieved by
charging customers for non-woven bags, and providing plastic bags

only when necessary.
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—  Encouraging the use of environmentally friendly materials and
energy efficient equipment in our construction projects. In respect of
the renovation and design of our office and stores, the Group
actively adds in environmental-friendly philosophy to adopt open
atrium design to maximise the use of natural light and share
lightings in common areas, and retain or refinish the existing
furniture where possible during renovations to reasonably make use
of the existing resources.

The Group aims to achieve a harmonious development of people,
buildings and the natural environment. While utilising natural resources
and handmade means to create a good and healthy living and entertaining
environment, we aim at controlling and minimising the use and destruction
of the natural environment.

Climate Change

KPI A4.1: Climate change has become a global focus and a major issue.
Extreme weather events caused by climate change are also becoming
more and more serious, bringing significant risks and impacts to the global
economy. The Group has always been recognising the impact of climate
change and has taken various measures to assess and reduce risks. The
Group has identified different physical risks that may pose a threat to its
operations and its financial performance, including various extreme
weather conditions and disasters (including droughts, floods, severe
typhoons, unusually persistent heat waves, epidemics, etc.) caused by
climate change. In addition, the Group also recognised the corresponding
transition risks caused by climate change, including the increase in
attention to climate-related issues, changes in consumer preferences and
changes in investors’ expectations and views to the Group, which may
result in the potential increase in operation, compliance and other costs.

Therefore, the Group will review the latest policies and regulations related
to climate change in the regions where it operates in a timely manner, and
identify potential climate-related risks that affect its operation activities
and long-term sustainable development. At the same time, the Group also
communicates with investors to understand their climate-related
expectations and concerns.

In order to deal with climate-related risks, ensure the safety of employees
and on-site personnel, and reduce the adverse effects of various extreme
weather conditions and disasters on operations and long-term sustainable
development, the Group has formulated relevant counter-measures and
plans as internal guidelines for its work procedures, so as to issue safety
warnings and make special work arrangements when such situations occur.
At the same time, the Group also pays close attention to and understands
the relevant requirements and regulations on addressing climate change
where it operates, continuously reviews and improves relevant work
arrangements and guidelines, and conducts relevant special drills on a
regular basis every year, in order to enhance employees’ awareness of
protection and response, ensure the safety of employees and on-site
personnel, and reduce property losses.
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Moreover, in view of the current global outbreak of COVID-19, the Group
has also proactively taken measures to prevent and control the pandemic
affected by extreme weather conditions in the regions where it operates.
The Group has also established emission reduction targets and
corresponding measures that help reducing greenhouse gas emissions, so
as to contribute to the sustainability of the global ecosystem.

Social

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

As of 31 December 2022, we had 1,168 employees, with 1,163 stationed in
the PRC and 5 in Hong Kong.

As an employer embracing equal opportunities, the Group's employment
policy aims to provide a working environment where is no discrimination
on the basis of race, gender, religion, age, etc., and establish a sound and
quality work environment to attract talents. All applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fairness.

In order to attract and retain outstanding talents, the Group has a
comprehensive performance appraisal management system and regularly
communicates with employees to ensure its system'’s transparency and
fairness. Through the assessment of employees’ job performance, we
employ and promote employees who are with common values and
professional ethics, and praise those who are self-motivated, responsible
and honest in order to ensure the continued improvement of the Group's
business.

Employees’ remuneration package is reviewed regularly by the Group. The
evaluation makes reference to the labour market and the level of salaries
and benefits in the same industry and takes into account of employees’
performance and working experience to ensure that competitive
remuneration packages are being offered so as to motivate their
continuous improvement and contribution to the Group. In terms of
employee dismissal policy, the Group follows the local regulations as
stipulated by the government.

The policy on working hours, rest days, other benefits and welfare of the
Group is in line with the requirements of the local government and
industry practices. In addition to paid annual leave, we also offer
employees other types of leaves, including sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and care leave.

Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiatives to maintain a
harmonious labour relationship. We work with labour unions to organise a
wide range of leisure and cultural activities to express our care to our
employees and promote healthy lifestyle and strengthen their sense of
belonging and togetherness to the Group.

In the financial year 2022, there were no serious breaches of applicable
legislations and/or regulations.
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KPI B1.1: Number of employees by gender, type of employment and age ~ BASEIEIZB1.1 « 20220 R Z iR - &

group in the financial year 2022 is shown in the following charts: EHEE - FRARSIDNEEABERNT :
Gender Employment Type 2.1%
]! EEER
o [ Labour Contracts
’X| BB
} . Services Contracts
Male HIBHAM
OSE
Female %1%

Age Group
FiAa R

B 1820
18-20%%

21-30
21-30%%

31-40
31-40%%

41-50
41-50%

Above 50

5088 A 1 ‘

KPI B1.2: In the financial year 2022, the employees’ turnover rate of the  BAHENIFIZB1.2 : R0 FE » AEEE
Group was 1.45%. BIMALLER1.45% °

a’ -
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The employees’ turnover rates by gender and age group in the financial 7202284 BU4F [ #2145 Bl & F #k 4E B &1 75 HY 1B

year 2022 are as follows: KL EERMT
By gender: By Age Group:
MR FHeAa R
Male Bt O 18-20 41-50
. 0.01% . 0.26%
18-20 41-503%
Vo.71% ==
Y 051% 0.12%
21-30%

Female Zf O

/Zx&\0.74% . os5%

Health and Safety BEHLE

The Group always strives to provide and maintain a safe and healthy ZAEB—EBNIREVEBEERNAETEES &
environment in its property portfolio for all the customers, employees, and B RAEBHIREREF T2 RERORE - 5
business partners. Therefore, the Group provides comprehensive It "EEARERESRFEIERE - EEXEMT
insurance coverage including work injury and employer liability, as well as ~ BIE RN 2 EHE S REBIRETEI R FEARE
annual health check to its employees. We conduct regular inspection of 182 « #E)E RN - X EMEAE - BB A
premises, provide training and education to our employees on disaster & BEZ2HE  SZHREZE2FIHRENOH
prevention, fire drills, occupational safety, as well as first aid training to & + LAINS& (& B £ & 2 B M &0as I =g - B i
enhance employees’ knowledge and skills to prevent accidents. EEBELETEEIN-
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KPI B2.1: There was no work-related fatality incidents reported in the past
three years, including the financial year 2022.

KPI B2.2: In the financial year 2022, the number of loss of working days due
to work injuries was 164 days, accounting for 0.05% of normal working
days.

KPI B2.3: Occupational health and safety measures, and related
implementation and monitoring methods are as follows:

—  Maintaining proper lightings and ventilation systems and a tidy
environment in office and department store areas, and providing
sufficient working space in the offices.

—  Smoking is prohibited in office and retail areas.

—  Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.

At the same time, the Group requires its employees to share the
responsibility in the setting, execution and monitoring of policies in
respect of safety and health. Their responsibilities include:

— Identifying, reporting and avoiding hazards at workplace in relation
to health and safety and having the responsibility to report such
hazards immediately to superiors or the security department.

—  Participating in the investigation of any accidents or hazards to
prevent them from happening or re-occurrence.

—  Working together in adopting work safety methods and procedures.

In 2022, against the backdrop of the ongoing outbreak of COVID-19
around the world, the Group has been committed to providing and
maintaining a safe and healthy shopping and working environment for all
customers, employees and partners in the property portfolio during the
epidemic prevention and control period in accordance with the relevant
government requirements on epidemic prevention and control and based
on the actual situation of the operating areas. The relevant policies and
measures are set out below:

—  Through the establishment of an effective epidemic prevention and
control system and in accordance with the information and
requirements on epidemic prevention and control issued by the
government, the Group continuously formulated, adjusted and
implemented corresponding emergency plans and protective
measures for epidemic prevention and control.

— Arranging special personnel to purchase epidemic protective
equipment regularly, including masks, hand sanitizers, alcohol,
disinfectants, etc., to ensure the supply of materials for epidemic
prevention and control.
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Arranging special personnel to be responsible for frequent
disinfection and division of dining areas of staff canteens, and
adopted epidemic prevention and control measures such as different
time slots and separated areas for dining to reduce crowds gathering.

Arranging special personnel to conduct body temperature screening
on the personnel entering and leaving the premises and requiring
relevant personnel to wear protective masks.

Arranging professional cleaning staff to disinfect the facilities of the
premises (including but not limited to door handles, lift cars and
buttons, escalators handles, information desks, public garbage bins
and shopping carts, etc.) on a daily basis with high frequency.
Professional cleaning staff disinfected the washrooms daily with high
frequency and thoroughly disinfected the operating premises on a
weekly basis as scheduled.

Disinfection stations were set up at customer information desk and
major entrances and exits of the premises in order to provide
alcohol disinfection services to customers. At the same time, special
disinfected garbage bins were prepared for disposal of discarded
masks for unified collection to avoid further contamination.

The operation of air-conditioning and fresh air system and ventilation
work during the epidemic prevention and control period has strictly
complied with the relevant government requirements on epidemic
prevention.

In accordance with the relevant government requirements on
pandemic prevention and control, professionals are arranged to clean
and disinfect the air-conditioning room and air-conditioning units.

Professional air-conditioning system cleaning companies were
engaged to thoroughly clean the air-conditioning systems and pipes
in the operating premises, and professional institutions were
arranged to assess the cleaning results to ensure that the hygiene of
the air-conditioning systems meets the relevant government
technical requirements.
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Development and Training

The Group firmly regards employees as valuable assets and their
development helps driving the growth of the Group. In pursuing our
business objectives and providing protection to the general rights and
interests of our employees, the Group puts in place a suitable platform
that supports the Group and employee development and training through
performance evaluation, two-way communications and questionnaires on
training needs. The employee development and training policies adopted
by the Group include:

—  Providing newly-joined staff with comprehensive orientation
programmes to assist them familiarise with the Group.

—  Providing employees with regular and ad-hoc internal job-related
training and development workshops.

—  Post training evaluations are conducted to assess the effectiveness of
these training programmes.
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KPI B3.1: Percentage of employees trained by gender and employee

category is as follow:

-

Gender

5

Employee Category
EEEH

Male S

’% 20.80%

Senior
management 14.29%
SRERE

Female 24

ﬁ;i\ 12.97%

Middle
management and
below

hRERERAT

16.63%

J

KPI B3.2: Average training hours completed per employee by gender and

employee category are as follow:
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to strictly complying with the relevant local labour
and employment laws and regulations, and ensure that the employment
contracts with employees are on a legal, fair, equal, voluntary, mutually
agreed and good faith basis. The Group adopts employment policy and
procedures which prohibit forced labour and child labour. The same
requirements also apply to the Group's concessionaires and tenants

KPI B4.1: The Group strives to perform continuous review and
improvement on the recruitment practices to prevent child labour and
forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

—  Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/or employ any
persons who are below 16 years old for any reason. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for the review of the age of
the applicants during recruitment to ensure that no minors under
the age of 16 are employed.

—  All employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not allow
forced labour, or using any form of deception to allure employee to
join the Group.

KPI B4.2: We are not aware of any child or forced labour incidents in the
financial year 2022. The Group believes that it is not exposed to any risk of
having child or forced labour in our business operation. We are committed
to taking immediate measures to eliminate any non-compliance in respect
of child and forced labour.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

In accordance with our operating practices and the composition of
different segments along our supply chain management model, our stores
sell direct purchased merchandises and offer branded merchandises and
services through concessionaire and leasing arrangements. Through
seamless cooperation with suppliers and business partners, and highly
efficient information technology networks, the Group is able to work
smoothly along the supply chain which optimises the resources allocation
to deliver high-quality products and services to our customers. The Group
strives to share our commitments and beliefs in environmental and social
aspects with our business partners. This also encourages our business
partners to pay attention to and control environmental and social risks that
may be related to supply chain management and embrace high standards
of corporate responsibilities which are similar to ours.
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The supply chain management policy adopted within the Group set out as
below:

—  To cooperate in a fair, honest and responsible manner with suppliers
who share our business philosophy.

—  Suppliers are contractually prohibited to recruit child labour.

—  Suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that the products they
offer are non-toxic and meet the relevant government and industry
requirements and standards.

KPI B5.1: As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 1,989 suppliers in China,
including 1,542 suppliers for Shanghai stores and 447 suppliers for Suzhou
store.

KPI B5.2:

— In engaging suppliers, they are required to meet the Group's
product requirements, such as price, quantity and delivery time.

— In engaging suppliers, it is based on a set of standards, including
quality control and compliance with relevant Mainland China and/or
international standards.

—  Renewal of supplier contracts is subject to review of their
performance based on the practice and their achievements.

KPI'B5.3:

—  Suppliers are responsible for product management in the sales area,
ensuring that the products provided are of good quality, and shall
not provide inferior commodities, and all processes in their supply
chain shall comply with the practices of environmental protection
and social risk reduction. The Group has the right to conduct
random inspections on the quality of products provided by the
suppliers.

KPI B5.4:

—  Suppliers are required to abide by the "Store Decoration Design
Guidelines”, "Interior Decoration Code” and other specifications
formulated by the Group. After completing the decoration project, it
should be inspected by the relevant departments of the Group's
member companies to ensure that the decoration conforms to the
practices and requirements of environmental protection and
services. In the event of non-compliance, the suppliers are required
to rectify immediately.
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Product Responsibility

The Group believes that our corporate sustainability and reputation are
built on our high quality products and services. Our operation team is
committed to providing safe and high quality products and services to our
customers, and addressing customer complaints with utmost attention.

Moreover, the Group believes that product safety is the key to our success.
We strictly follow the industry standards and government regulations
relevant to our products and services. We provide trainings to employees
to enhance their consciousness of product safety in order to prevent any
counterfeits and sub-standard merchandises being sold at our stores and
to protect the rights and interests of our consumers.

The product safety policies adopted by the Group are as follow:

—  For non-food products, the Group enhanced the quality checks on
products provided by our suppliers and business partners to ensure
that these products meet the relevant safety standards and
requirements. Based on the characteristics of product, special
attention is placed on the compliance with those regulations and
requirements related to baby and children products, toys and
customer safety to ensure that our products sold fully comply with
the relevant mandatory regulations and requirements in the PRC.

—  For food products, the Group assumes the primary responsibility for
food safety in accordance with the relevant provisions of the “Food
Safety Law of the PRC". We also set and implement policies and
procedures such as “Purchase inspection and recording policy”,
"Food selling procedure management”, “Procedures regarding
removal of substandard food items from shelves”, and “policy and
procedures relating to reporting and handling of emergency food
safety incident” to ensure all food items provided are safe.

KPI B6.1: During the year, no products were recalled by the Group due to
significant safety and health reasons.

KPI B6.2: Our customer services extended to before, during and after the
sales. All complaints are handled by professional personnel of the Group's
customer service department. Details of the complaints, progress status,
handling time and settlement are properly recorded and supervised. There
were 272 complaints in respect to products and services received by the
Group in financial year 2022, which were consistent with the industry norm.
At the same time, during the epidemic prevention and control period, the
customer service department also overcame various difficulties to ensure
that relevant customers’ complaints relating to return and exchange of

products and repairs were properly handled.
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KPI B6.3:

The Group recognises that brand equity is critical to our success. We
actively allocate resources to maintain and protect the intellectual property
rights of our brands.

—  We value intellectual property rights and determine intellectual
property rights as an indispensable element of successful business.

—  We manage and protect our intellectual property rights through
registration and maintenance and enforcement measures.

—  We respect intellectual property rights of others and do not infringe
their intellectual property rights.

—  Suppliers who have business dealings with the Group are required to
ensure that they will not display, sell, use and store any items that
infringe the intellectual property rights of others at designed sales
areas or counters, and also undertake not to engage in other related
illegal acts at designed sales areas or department store areas.

KPI B6.4: If products are found to be of significant quality problems, the
Group will initiate action plan to trace the product batch so as to ensure
high product quality and service standards.

KPI B6.5: Consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

In order to protect the relevant information and privacy of consumers, the
personal information that consumers fill out in the”Membership
Application Form” when applying for a membership card are entered into
the membership system of the Group by specialised personnel, and are
archived confidentially and centrally managed. Our employees are not
allowed to access member information without authorisation.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to achieve transparency, integrity and accountability in
our operations and require our employees to maintain high standard on
ethics, personal and professional conducts in order to maintain and
promote the Group's reputation. In addition to these codes of conduct for
employees, the Group has put in place an interest declaration and
whistleblowing mechanism, which we share with our Directors, colleagues
and business partners to minimise and mitigate any situations that may
lead to the occurrence of conflict of interests or corruptions. At the same
time, the Group considers integrity as our core value and encourages our
employees to report any improper, misconduct or fraudulent conducts.
The anti-corruption policy of the Group is set out in the Employees’
Handbook and the "Letter of Undertaking by Supplier in respect of
Anti-Commercial Bribery”.
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KPI B7.1: In the financial year 2022, there were no companies within the
Group or any of their employees during the employment term were
prosecuted for corruption.

KPI'B7.2:

The Group requires employees to confirm and sign the “Declaration and
Commitment of Honesty and Integrity” when they are employed, and
requires relevant suppliers and outsourcing processors that have business
dealings with the Group to confirm and sign the”Anti-Commercial Bribery
Commitment” before conducting formal transactions, and comply with the
relevant anti-corruption commitments and requirements set out in the
employee handbook and commitment letter.

Any employee can report to the relevant departments of the Group
companies directly or through any managerial staff if corruption is
identified or suspected. The whistleblower may also request that his/her
identity be kept confidential. We will protect the whistleblower from any
form of retaliation to the extent practicable, unless the whistleblower
himself/herself has violated the regulations or acts maliciously.

KPI'B7.3:

The Group’'s member companies are required to provide Directors and
employees with the above anti-corruption training and reiterate the above
anti-corruption requirements on a regular or irregular basis as the case
may be.

Community Investment
The Group adheres to the concept of "Giving back to society
proactively participate in community and social services to promote

"

and
corporate social responsibilities and make contributions to the society. In
this regard, we actively invest in the community, especially in those less
privileged groups as well as the young generation in respect of education,
growth and development. Through engaging and interacting with the
community, the Group aims to:

—  Support less privileged groups and bring them love and hopes;

—  Encourage employees to be compassionate and sympathetic;

—  Strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the society; and

—  Provide education to help them achieving better future.

KPI B8.1: The Group contributes its time and resources to the community
in the following areas:

—  Supporting and interacting with the community (such as the less
privileged groups and people with disabilities); and

— Education
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KPI B8.2: The related initiative in each area include:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B8 « H 2R ERME (&

For education support, activities organised by the Group in the
financial year 2022 were as follows,

In August 2022, our Shanghai store participated in “Rainbow art
hand in hand; dedication to the Earth in the future” children creative
art exhibition and charity bazaar. The Group supported the
Shanghai Charity Education and Training Center with actions and
financial support by sponsoring children in need for 7 consecutive
years (especially the development of disabled youth) and caring for
their growth and success, and contributed to the charity with a
donation.

In August 2022, our Suzhou store participated in the project of love
dormitory construction project for schools in poverted mountainous
areas organised by Ying Chun Hua Love Federation (& 75 B /3B
A &) of the Suzhou Industrial Park, providing assistance to schools
from the less privileged region. We extended our support to Majian
Nine-year School in Xiji County, Ningxia Autonomous Region (£ E
EHEZEEBNF —EHIZHK) and Gupo School in Gangu County,
Gansu Province (H @ H A& & & # 2 %) by donating dormitory
bedding, daily necessities and graphene heating panels.

In September 2022, our Suzhou store continued to participate in the
Charity Education Support Programme of Suzhou Industrial Park
Charity Federation, and continued to support students from less
privileged families in Suzhou Industrial Park, thus students from less
privileged families would acquire knowledge and not give up the
opportunities to learn due to the poverty of their families.

In terms of social care, activities organised by the Group in the
financial year 2022 were as follows,

In January 2022, our Shanghai store continued to participate in the
“Love under Blue Sky — Charity Sale by Thousands of Shop” event
hosted by the Shanghai Charity Foundation, and donated part of a
day’s sales revenue to support women living in poverty for
gynecological examination and the elderly in difficulties.

The Group continued to work with various charitable organisations
to actively interact with local communities in a variety of ways during

the year, in order to care for the welfare of local vulnerable
communities and younger generation. In the financial year 2022, the
charitable organisations we worked with included Shanghai Charity
Foundation, Shanghai Jing'an District Civil Affairs Bureau, Shanghai
Charitable Education and Training Center, Suzhou Industrial Park
Charity Foundation and Ying Chun Hua Love Federation of Suzhou
Industrial Park.
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Outlook KRR E

The Group will continue to uphold our principle in a responsible manner ~ ANEE{N#— MBI T FRIFHES - EE - kR
and strive to strike a balance among the interests of our customers, KR EAEMNEEKRA - SRS EELT
employees, shareholders and the society, and is committed to the & @ EBERIFL LB EEFIZEE ST 0%
coordinated developments between the enterprise and the society, the %R - AL @M EERNER -

enterprise and the environment and the enterprise and the stakeholders,

and make contributions to the society.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBE

Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors ("Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The Company has adopted
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Code Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2022, except the following deviation:

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not segregated
but such arrangement would facilitate the development and execution of
the Group's business strategies and enhances efficiency and effectiveness
of its operations.

Corporate Culture

The Group focuses on the development of the Jiuguang brand,
continuously optimizing its product mix and creating a rich and
comfortable shopping environment to meet people’s pursuit of a stylish
and quality lifestyle. Pursuant to the corporate culture standards set by the
Board, the Group applies the four core values of innovation, teamwork,
excellence and integrity throughout its daily operation and management,
and actively strives to create value for customers, employees, partners and
shareholders.

Innovation — As consumer behavior continues to change and evolve, the
Group is committed to creating added value for customers and business
partners through the promotion of new products, processes, propositions
and business models. Recently, the Group pressed ahead with its
marketing strategy of omni-channel membership management, with new
retail business initiatives that integrate online platforms and its retail
establishments in time to capture the opportunities presented by the
e-commerce boom and surge in demand for online shopping during the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Teamwork — The Group promotes and encourages trust and cooperation
among its employees and teams. This not only creates better shopping
experience for customers but will keep employees motivated during
challenging times. This was particularly evident during the pandemic, when
team members encouraged each other and pulled together to overcome
the operational issues and difficulties brought about by the pandemic over
the past three years, and spared no efforts to face the various challenges
of market recovery.
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Excellence — The Group's pursuit of excellence and quality is evident not
only in the projects it develops, but also in the subtleties of its daily
operations. The Group aims to consolidate its leading position in the
lifestyle and retail sector and expand its VIP customer base. As a pioneer in
introducing unique and sophisticated lifestyle concepts, the Group's
venues have become some of the most popular shopping and
entertainment destinations in the regions where it operates.

Integrity — The Group strives to adhere to high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance in all its activities and operations, and
attaches great importance to the character of its team members and
quality of its products. The Group has not only adopted the code
provisions in the CG Code as set out in the Listing Rules, but has also
established an interest declaration and whistleblowing mechanism which
the Group shares with its business partners to promote fairness and trust.

The Group communicates its corporate culture to all employees, business
partners, and shareholders through various trainings, meetings and
manuals. The Group also provides channels for all stakeholders to voice
their concerns in relation to the Group's operations. The Board is
responsible for monitoring operating practices and taking appropriate
actions to uphold and promote the Group's reputation.

As at the date of this report, the Board has reviewed and concluded that
the Group's corporate culture is consistent with its purpose, values and
strategy. The Group will continue to provide training to its directors and
employees to ensure that its core values are reflected and carried through
in its day-to-day operations.

The Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of seven
directors, including three executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent non-
executive directors with one of whom being a certified public
accountant. The Board believes that the number of executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that would safeguard the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry experience
and expertise, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group's business activities and
development.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
"Corporate Information” in this annual report. Details of the
changes to the composition of the Board, during the year and up to
the date of this report, are provided in the “Directors’ Report” under
the section “Directors”. The directors’ biographical details and the
relationships among them are set out in the "Profile of Directors” in
this annual report.
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(2)

(3)

(4)

FRPEREARRAF

The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-
executive directors and the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors meet the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, being
the same person, is responsible for setting overall strategic plan and
development of the Group as well as for implementing the Board's
decisions, monitoring and supervising the Group's overall
performance, ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources
are available to implement the business strategies being adopted
from time to time, setting out and monitoring targets, plans and
direction for management, reporting to the Board on the Group's
performance and proposing business plans and strategies for further
evaluation and assessment by the Board.

Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing the strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximising the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-
to-day operations and administration of the Group.
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(5)
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Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company. The directors are aware of their collective and
individual responsibilities to the Company and the shareholders in
respect of the manner in which the affairs of the Company are being
controlled and managed.

Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up to deal
with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial
information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the Chief Executive Officer and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the Board.
Under the Company's articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any such new director so appointed shall
hold office only until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

There is no specific term for all non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) and all directors (including
non-executive directors) are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and are subject to re-election in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
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(6)

7)
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Meetings 6) &=
The Board held five meetings during the year to consider and/or EEERFRNEERAREEH UEE
approve, among other matters, the Group's interim and final results K/ Sk (AR aE) REBMF I RK
announcements and financial statements, material transactions, and HEBERNEMMBEREK BEARS @ IE
to review quarterly operating performance of the Group. BIAEENEFELERE -
Board members attended the Company's Board meetings either in BEANBEBERBAGIEE EF
person or through video/telephone conferencing means in CREEBRENAEIE BEESHRHIAE
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of HARNBESTGER SEENFALFE
association. The attendance record of each director at the Board EFe e MREBFERG ZrRgHIIW
meetings and annual general meeting held during the year is set out K
below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HE " BITEBRK
Board Annual General
Meetings Meeting
Directors B EEZEER BREBFRE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas REE S A 5/5 11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRIEIS/NE 5/5 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHTES
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRR/ NE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRR 5 A 5/5 0/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai IR S £ 5/5 11
Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee (7) ESSkHETZESSBCERARE

Meetings

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board Committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
Committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant
Board Committee members in a timely manner before the
meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board Committee meetings. Board and Board
Committee minutes are available for inspection by the directors and
Board Committee members.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction pack covering the Group's businesses and the statutory
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company will be
provided to each newly appointed director, if any. The Company
continuously updates the directors on the Group's businesses and
the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements.

During the year, the directors participated the following training:

(8)

ESHERBHEEERR

BEHMEECEST (R ERSERERE
AEBEBR LW AREFHERZREE
FEENBBEN - ARRFEMOES
REABAAKEEFILNAR EHRR R
Hit@mEERENTHER -

FAR-EFZC2EUTHEI:

Types of Training

Directors = EAER
Executive Director HTES

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BBt A, C
Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRIEIC/NME A, C
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES

Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRS/ NE AC
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIS £ A C
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MOLET e 4 A C
A — reading materials provided by the Company relating to A — BIEHAARREEEAAFE

the Company'’s businesses and regular updates on the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities

B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities

C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate
governance matters, environment and social issues or
director’s duties and responsibilities

BAREHEEBRBRETIN L
AR RIS B At 3 A BR B R E B E

HIE &R

B — HERWESRKEIEENMER
g/ Mg/ g wiE

C — MEAMEEEREH BRER
HEREREERBLETNR
BT
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors. After specific enquiries by the Company, all
directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022. The directors have ensured that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a
going concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to ensure the
continued objectivity and independence of the external auditor. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the remunerations paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company were approximately RMB2.6 million and
approximately RMBO0.4 million in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group respectively. Details of non-audit services and the
fees incurred are as follows:

Review of interim financial information RMBO.4 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2022
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Board Committees

As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and nomination committee are in operation and they have
been established with specific terms of reference to assist the Board in
discharging its responsibilities.

(1) Audit Committee
The audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Lam
Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man,
Raymond, all are independent non-executive directors. The audit
committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, who is a certified
public accountant. The audit committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

(i) to review the services and appointment of the Company'’s
external auditor, the nature and scope of auditing, and the
related audit fees;

(i) to review the Company'’s financial statements and reports, the
changes in accounting policies and practices, and the
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements;

(i)  to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(iv)  to review and monitor the corporate governance functions as
set out in the CG Code.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

EZ2ETHNERS

RAH/EAS BREAE HFHEEER
REZAREEE  BRSUREEORERE
R AR EFEETRABE -

(1) BHRZEEE
ERZEEem-RKEBEMAER  BIMEE
A REMPMERKIRIEL - 2K
BEYRBIUNFNTEZ -BERZEE
MAREERELRE  RAMESE -
ERZERRRERARERABITERE

o
t

BT RIS ST ANMRSIE S BRIR AT E 2 &
ZECREREFIZRE BN ME
B CDEHRAREMEE -

il

ERZEGZIERENT

() BHARBINEZEE 2 RERE
REARZBIEE S8 R AEEX
BER:

iy BHARAZHMBEMERRE &
SR EEN 2 #E) REGTEST
AT ER] - EmA R RIEGIR
E

(i) EBEFRAKEZHBEHRBRHE BB
EENABEENE - &

V) BARERCETIRIIZOE
SR BEE -

g

FAN BRZEGURTMAERH %
BEXRELREEHZ2HHAIIWT -

A

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit committee members ERZEEEHE HE T BITEBRRE
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MIEF A (EFE) 2/2
Ms. Cheung Mei Han sREIR/ A 2/2
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRR S 2/2
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In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with external
auditor the Group’s interim and annual financial statements and
reports before they were submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval; (i) reviewed with the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems;
(iv) reviewed the corporate governance functions of the Group; and
(v) reviewed the management’s position and basis of assessment on
major judgmental areas concerning the auditor’s modified opinion.

BEZZBENE L) RIS EENER A
SEPHEFEMBRELBERIEER
E=gAEERIAE ¢ ()EINEEZEED
BHAREMEAZ SRR EBERA
(i) 2% B8] el o 0 222 T P B BE HR A 2 2 B 2K
t (EHAREZ EEEIAREE - k()
BRERNZHE L AFERETREEE
B8 I 77 T B9S85 Ko R Al B o

(2) Remuneration Committee (2 FHZEES
Members of the remuneration committee comprise three FTINEEEeNER-RBRBUIIENTES
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, MABEE(BRRFMEEGZERF) -
who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, Ms. Cheung REM/NMEKRIBEE AR —BNITE
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive FRABBELENX - FHEESHIEHRST
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The remuneration WERNBITERE -
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.
The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out B8 SFRIBSFRIE SR Sl BRI T E 2 %
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the MEEeRESEFNEZEGZRNRE
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on 5 BEHNAQR ML -
the Company'’s website.
The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to provide FHNEZEER2EZRERONESRAR
advice and recommendations to the Board on (i) the remuneration EREZHNGE  ()E2EWMSEBER
packages of the directors and senior management; (i) any specific REBREARBER2ZEESTETRET
remuneration packages with reference to market conditions, 2 BERBHE  SAEREBHMES
performance of the Group and the individuals with reference to the RNV ERREZSSRERER LT
goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if Bz EREETHRNEETSRMER R
necessary, any compensation arrangement for termination of office =K
of directors or senior management.
The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year. The FRN FHEESERT-—RERE-BE
attendance record of each committee member is set out below: BeNEHEgZE 2 CHEHTINT

Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee members FWEEERE HE " BITEBRK
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BB EE 1/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) AR & (EFF) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRE/ A 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIRX e 1/1
In the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed and FMEEenNe LEHULERBEFSIE
recommended for the Board’s approval (i) the discretionary bonus WBEFERATERZEZ—FE ZBIBIEL:
for the chief executive officer for the year 2021; and (ii) the RN ZEZZFEZESEHMNEFE -
remuneration packages of the directors for the year 2022.
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(3)

50

Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas who is the chairman of
the nomination committee. The nomination committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company'’s website.

The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The above principal duties are regarded as the key nomination
criteria and principles for the nomination of directors of the
Company, which also form part of the nomination policy of the
Company. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board, the nomination committee would
consider various aspects such as candidate’s qualification, time
commitment to Company and contributions that will bring to the
Board as well as factors concerning board diversity as set out in the
Company's Board diversity policy, before making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of directors.

The nomination committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.

(3)
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The nomination committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

FRREEERURTRER - EE
B R R RS

Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee members BEEZEENKE HE/BITEERE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman) BIBEIE S A (X FE) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREI/ A 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIRX e 1/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MR & 11

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) reviewed the existing
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) reviewed the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and
(iii) made recommendations to the Board on the proposed re-
election of the retiring directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. As such, the Board not only sets and
communicates the Group's strategies and objectives but also oversees the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems on an ongoing
basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal controls systems has been conducted at least
annually.

The audit committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk management
and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The audit committee
reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems to ensure that management has fulfilled its duties
in establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and internal
controls systems. It also assesses the extent and frequency of the
communication of the monitoring results to the Board, as well as
considering the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management practices and internal controls and management's responses
to the findings of such investigations. The audit committee performs
annual review for the adequacy of budget and resources, staff qualification
and experience, and the quality of training program of the Group's internal
audit, accounting and financial reporting functions.
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The Group's system of internal controls which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help the
achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
external publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational systems for the
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information and procedures are in place for the handling of confidential
commercial information to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made.

The main features of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems are illustrated below:
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The Group has established an organisational structure with defined levels
of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly management
accounts are available for review of the senior management and the Board
(in a concise format of a Monthly Report) for monitoring the Group's
financial and operating results. The management, supported by the
operation units and the internal audit team, are responsible for
formulating, implementing and monitoring sound risk management and
internal control systems, and reporting to the Board and the audit
committee on the result of risk assessment, as well as the assessment on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
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The internal audit provides an independent appraisal on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems. The yearly internal audit plan is derived based on the assessed
risk of the Group's major operations and business and, taking into account
also result of internal audit activities conducted in the preceding period,
are reported to the audit committee for approval. In addition to its
scheduled internal audit works, the internal audit team may be requested
to conduct other review or investigative work. The results of internal audit
reviews and agreed management action plans in response to
recommendations of the internal audit are reported to the executive
director and audit committee periodically. In case material internal control
defects are noticed, the internal audit team will perform further
investigation and report the confirmed material defects and findings to the
audit committee for further action, if any. The internal audit also follows up
with management regarding the implementation of the agreed action
plans to ensure that operation procedures and internal controls are
continuously enhanced.

In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and internal
controls conducted by the internal audit team, the half-yearly review and
annual audit conducted by our external auditors, aim to provide assurance
that the Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the Group's accounting policies
and applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also provide to certain
extent independent checks on the Group's internal controls system.

For the year ended 31 December, 2022, management has conducted
regular reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems covering all material aspects
related to financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and security of physical assets and information
systems. The audit committee had been reported during the audit
committee meetings of key findings identified by internal auditors and
external auditors and discussed findings and actions or measures taken in
addressing those findings relating to the Group's risk management and
internal controls. No material issues on the risk management and internal
controls system have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2022 and no significant areas of concern which might require rectification
works or affect our stakeholders, including our shareholders. The Board
and its audit committee considered the risk management and internal
control system to be effective and adequate, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analyst's briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our
executive director and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.

Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements in
force but also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary results announcement and the publication of interim
and annual reports. The annual general meeting of the Company also
provides an opportunity for communication between the Board and the
shareholders.

In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. Regular meetings are also held with institutional investors and
research analysts to provide them with timely updates on the Group's
latest business developments which are not inside information (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in nature. These activities will keep the public
informed of the Group's activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums during
the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the
Group's business operations and development strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have
an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information
released by the Group.

Dividend Policy

The Company currently does not have a pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. Any declaration, payment and amount of dividend in the future are
subject to the Board's discretion having regard to the Group's future
financial performance and earnings, capital requirement financial
conditions and other factors as the Board may consider relevant.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, on a one
vote per share basis, shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business or resolution specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself (themselves)
may convene a physical meeting at only one location which will be the
principal meeting place, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
shareholder(s) as a result shall be reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the
Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director are
set out under the “"Corporate Information” on the homepage of the
Company's website.

For details in relation to shareholders’ right, please refer to the articles of
association of the Company which is available on the website of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle China Group Limited

20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030

Email: info@lifestylechina.com.hk

Constitutional Documents

On 28 December 2022, the Board proposed to adopt the second
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company. Details of the proposed amendments were set out in the
circular of the Company dated 22 February 2023. The proposed adoption
of the second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company is subject to the approval of the shareholders
by way of a special resolution at the extraordinary general meeting to be
held on 20 March 2023.

Save for the above, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association during the year.
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Profile of Directors
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Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lau, aged 69, joined the Company in January 2016. He is the Chairman
and chief executive officer, and is also director of certain subsidiaries and
associated companies of the Company. Mr. Lau is also the chairman and a
non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
("Lifestyle International”, the shares of which were withdrawn from listing
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
December 2022 pursuant to a privatization initiative). Mr. Lau is a member
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Shanghai
Committee and a member of the board of directors of the Shanghai Jiao
Tong University, the PRC.

Mr. Lau Kam Sen

Mr. KS Lau, aged 34, was appointed an executive director of the Company
on 20 March 2023. He is also an executive director of Lifestyle
International. Prior to joining the Lifestyle International group, he has
worked in investment banking with a global financial institution in Hong
Kong. Mr. KS Lau holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Columbia
University in the City of New York and a Master of Arts degree from New
York University. He is the son of Mr. Lau and the brother of Ms. Lau Kam
Shim.

Ms. Lau Kam Shim

Ms. Lau, aged 35, was appointed an executive director of the Company on
20 March 2023. She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from King's College
London, University of London and a Master of Arts degree from Columbia
University in the City of New York. Ms. Lau joined the Lifestyle International
group in 2012 and has assumed the current role of executive director of
Lifestyle International since 2016. She also serves as a vice-president of the
International Association of Department Stores, a member of the
Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association
and a member of the Retail & Tourism Committee with the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau and the
sister of Mr. KS Lau.
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Non-executive Director

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Ms. Chan, aged 61, joined the Company in March 2016. She has over 20
years of experience in corporate management. Ms. Chan holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Leicester, United
Kingdom and a Bachelor degree in Laws from the University of
Wolverhampton, United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Ms. Cheung, aged 57, joined the Company in June 2016. Ms. Cheung is a
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor degree in Laws
from the University of London and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from
the University of Hong Kong. She is also an associate member of The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries). Ms. Cheung has more than 30 years of experience
in the company secretarial sector. She has pursued her career in the legal
sector since 2006 and is currently a partner at S.Y. Wong & Co, a law firm in
Hong Kong. She is the President of the Hong Kong Sailing Federation.

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Cheung, aged 68, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Cheung is an
entrepreneur and has over 10 years of experience in the department store
industry. He also has over 20 years of experience in the textile and
garment manufacturing industries and served as a director of the 15th
Board of Directors of the Federation of Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturers in 1992.

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

Mr. Lam, aged 67, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Lam serves as an
executive director, group financial controller and company secretary of
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has over 40 years of experience in
auditing, finance and accounting industries. Mr. Lam is a Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and holds a Master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom.
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Directors’ Report
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The board of directors ("Board”) of the Company present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores and
related retailing business as well as property investment in the PRC.

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 74.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022, comprising the discussion of the future business development and
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 16 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Five-Year Group Financial
Summary” on page 159. Particulars of important event affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year under review are
provided in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations are contained in the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 17 to 40 of this annual report.
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Shares
Details of movements during the year in the shares of the Company are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Distributable Reserves
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business which consists of direct
sales and sales under concessionaire arrangement. During the year, less
than 30% of the Group's revenue were attributed by the Group's five
largest customers and approximately 59% of the Group’s purchase were
attributed by the Group's five largest suppliers in respect of our direct
sales and approximately 20% of the Group's purchases were attributed by
the largest supplier.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their respective
close associates or any shareholder who owned more than 5% of the
number of issued shares had interest in any of the five largest suppliers of
the Group.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB319,000 (2021: RMB2,394,000).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued) &= 1§ 4 (&)

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Kam Sen (appointed on 20 March 2023)

Ms. Lau Kam Shim (appointed on 20 March 2023)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim, both were appointed as directors
of the Company on 20 March 2023, will hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company pursuant to Article 83(3) of the
Company's articles of association and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

In accordance with Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Changes in Information of Directors
Below are the changes in director’s information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

—  the shares of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, of which
Mr. Lau is the chairman and a non-executive director, were
withdrawn from listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited in December 2022 pursuant to a privatisation
initiative.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the directors’ and the chief executive's interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

BEERERSTTRAERKR®G - HERH
LEERE 2R
RIE-—F+-A=+—H SEZL&EETT
A BRAR B E AR 2 B EE (RGEH R
BE GBI #ES MBI ] EXVEFTAEE)
2B HER G REEEFRFEIREE S M
EIEPIZEIS2ER TN BET 2B MRk
BRIBEEBHAERIFIBERAR ([BRAT]) #FH L
TR A (T TR B Kl s+ Frs 2 ( EEITA
EFHTBESFRHNZESTAND(ZEESFRI]) A
ST RN KRBTz #Ewm MORR Y 0
™~

Long position in shares of the Company REQXTRBZHEE
Number of Percentage of
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERSG HEBRTRA
EEnE B ity #E ZEDL
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 252,051,460 17.21%
BB EE EmEEA
Interest of controlled corporations (Note) 844,988,832 57.70%
EyEflEE R (ME)
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy Beneficial owner 297,000 0.02%

BRI/ NE EmEAA

Note: The 844,988,832 shares comprise:

(a) 540,000,000 shares held by United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”).
United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
through his controlled corporations and as to 20% by certain family
members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph, the elder brother of Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares in which United Goal

is interested.

(b) 304,988,832 shares held by Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”),
which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares held by Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Nor any of the directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during
the year under review.
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Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the SFO

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than a director or
the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company:

BREBZRBEFRHAETHEZRRE
e

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H FTAUNALCFE
BEARBEERZEITHAE) RARAZRG
KRB D R A IRIEE S M E KRG FH3361&
HERHNBEFZECMASAMERAE 2
WIERRBEIT

Long position in shares of the Company REAQABDRGBZHER
Number of Percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held issued shares
BERH HERITRAE
8 B e £ =] ZBEDE
United Goal Beneficial owner (Note 3) 540,000,000 36.87%
EnfEA A ME3)
Asia Prime Assets Limited Interest of controlled corporation 540,000,000 36.87%
(“Asia Prime"”) (Notes 1 and 3)
RPEHEE R (51 &3)
Sand Cove Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporations 540,000,000 36.87%
("Sand Cove") (Notes 2 and 3)
RPEHEEER ([HFE2%3)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 3) 304,988,832 20.83%
EnfEA A ME3)
Notes: Bt EE -
1. Asia Prime, a company indirectly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,Thomas, holds 1. Asia Prime BZISBEEMBEZES 2 AT EFE

80% of the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of the SFO, Asia
Prime is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares comprising
540,000,000 shares in which United Goal is interested as beneficial owner.

2. Sand Cove, which is wholly owned and directly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas, is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 100% voting power at
general meetings of Asia Prime. By virtue of the SFO, Sand Cove is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares in which Asia Prime is deemed to be

interested as set out in Note 1 above.

3. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is a director of United Goal and Sand Cove, and the

sole director of Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person (other than a director or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2022 which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements
The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

There was no competing business of which a director of the Company had
an interest which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section “Connected Transaction and
Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company or any
entities connected with the director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company'’s articles of association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group.
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HEXZRBERERS

BE-_ZT-—_F+-_A=1t—HIEER " 1BE
EWRA ARRZ TR BIEK — R IERER
SRR TERCHEBER S ([HEBER

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected
Transactions

The following transaction constituted one-off connected transaction and/
or non-exempt continuing connected transactions of the Company
("Continuing Connected Transactions”) under the Listing Rules during the

year ended 31 December 2022. 51) -
1. Tenancy Agreements 1. HEmR
Transaction Party Name of Date of Nature of Annual caps amount Transaction amount
within the Group Counter Party agreement Terms transaction for the year 2022 for the year 2022
- Sk : 4 - Sk
REBRAH REHLER EEE] £ RHHE FELREE R5EE
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR®FR) (AR®T )
Shanghai Ongoing Shanghai Joinbuy () 26November () 1 October 2004 to (i) Lease of entire () (@) Lease/Rental Expense: (i) (a) Lease/Rental Expense:
Department Store Limited ~ City Plaza Co. Ltd." 2004 30 September 2024 building of HE/HeR% BE/BeHL:
("Shanghai Ongoing”), (”Shangha”i Joinbuy -zEpE -EEpELR-0E Shanghai Joihbgy 164,000 125,330
a company owned City Plaza"), a company +—A=+5A -E-mEHRA=+A City Plaza Building (Note 2)
of 65% by the Group owned of 50% by the - T - ("Shanghai (H#2)
HEAYESERAT Group (Note 1) Premises”) (Note 2)
((LEAR)) *%E  LELARTESERAR BEEELAAR () Management Fee: (o) Management Fee:
BESRRENLA (TEBNBRTRES]) - BMESAE ERBE: BER:
REBEE0BREN AT ([ HEE=5m]) 40,000 39519
(k1) (F&2) (Note 2)
(RfzE2)
(i) 28 December (i) 1 October 2024 to (i) Lease of the (i) N/A(Note 4) (i) N/A(Note 4)
2022 30 September 2044 Shanghai Premises REE (W) BB ()
kS —2-mE+A-BF (Note 3
+=ZA=t/\A “ZMREAAZTH HE LERESH
(Fi3£3)
2.  Entrusted Loan Agreement 2. ZERERGE
Transaction Party Name of Date of Nature of Annual caps amount Transaction amount
within the Group Counter Party agreement Terms transaction for the year 2022 for the year 2022
—E-CEy —E-CEy
REBRAH REUTER iz 3 REHE FELREHE REEE
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR¥%T7) (AR®F )
Shanghai Ongoing Shanghai Joinbuy City 23 June 2021 23 June 2021 to Provision of 100,000 50,000
Ak Plaza (Note 1) It S 22 June 2024 entrusted loan(s) (Note 5)
EENERTES AAZt=A ZEZ-ERAZTIAE (Note)) (FiE5)
(RzE1) ZE-MERAZTZA REZAER
(H35)
Notes: B 5
1. Shanghai Ongoing is owned as to 5% by /8 WA (£ E) B R A A 1. EEAKB DA (RE)BRAR (A

(Shanghai Joinbuy Group Co., Ltd.") ("Joinbuy Group") and 30% by /&
NE D BBR A 8] (Shanghai Joinbuy Co., Ltd.") (“Joinbuy Co.”). Joinbuy
Group and Joinbuy Co. (whose controlling shareholder is Joinbuy Group),
being substantial shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing, are connected
persons of the Company at the subsidiary level. As Shanghai Joinbuy City

EENREBLEBRHAERRT(TLER
1) 7 BIE B 5% R 30%HE - WA EE K
NBEEN (EERRRANBEE) A LE
AKREBER - REAFTRMEBAREE
BMEAL - AR LENBRTESHENEE
B B B D 2 BB 12% K 38% A HE - 1R
BELETRE - EENABRTESRNABERN
BB A AR D RIR I E A B Em R B E
At

Plaza is owned as to 12% by Joinbuy Group and 38% by Joinbuy Co.,
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza is an associate of Joinbuy Co. and a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level under the Listing
Rules.

A

tORXEWERTE BHES

The English name is translated for identification purpose only
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2. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the
announcement “Renewal of Annual Caps” of the Company dated
30 December 2021.

3. The new tenancy agreement entered into between Shanghai Ongoing as
tenant and Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza as landlord in relation to the
Shanghai Premises dated 28 December 2022 (“New Shanghai Jiuguang
Tenancy Agreement”) constituted very substantial acquisition and one-off
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules and is
subject to shareholder’s approval in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company to be held on 20 March 2023. Further details of the
transaction have been set out in the Company’s announcement dated
28 December 2022 (“Announcement”) and circular dated 22 February 2023
(“Circular”) in relation to the New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy Agreement.

4. Further details of the proposed annual caps being set for the three financial
year ending 2024, 2025 and 2026, commencing on 1 October 2024, were
set out in the Announcement and the Circular. Payment of the turnover rent
(if any) and management fees under the New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy
Agreement constitutes continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

5. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2021 and its supplemental
announcement dated 28 June 2021.

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been reviewed by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Notice 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

To the extent the transactions disclosed above which are also related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, these related party transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
Certain related party transactions in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt
from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other requirements.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2022.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the employees’
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors of
the Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, taking into
consideration to the Company's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Employees

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 1,168 employees,
with 1,163 stationed in mainland China and 5 in Hong Kong. Staff costs
(excluding directors’ emoluments) amounted to RMB192.7 million (2021:
RMB191.3 million) for the year. The Group ensures that the pay levels of its
employees are competitive and in line with the market trend and its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group's salary and bonus system.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's shares has been
held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) . A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to reappoint PwC as
auditor of the Company. There has been no change in auditor of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

20 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBERE

_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of Lifestyle China Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle China Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 74 to 158, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022;
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

As further detailed in note 17 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, the Group holds equity interests in certain associated
companies herein referred to as "Beiren Group”. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group recognised a share of profits of associates
of RMB182.2 million and carried RMB3,272.7 million investments in
associates on the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, of which RMB182.5 million of the share of profits of
associates for the year and RMB3,267.7 million of the carrying value of
investments in associates as at 31 December 2022 were attributable to the
Beiren Group.

In 2019, the Group made a full expected credit loss allowance, net of
deferred tax credit (“Full Impairment”) against the entire overdue trade
receivable balances due from three PRC companies (“Debtors”) of the
Beiren Group (“Trade Receivables”), for the purpose of recognising the
Group's share of results of the Beiren Group. Such Trade Receivables are
guaranteed by the ultimate beneficial owner of the Debtors (the
"Guarantor”). The impact of the Full Impairment on the Group's share of
losses of associates, loss attributable to owners and loss attributable to
non-controlling interests for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0 million respectively.

We have previously qualified our auditor’s report on the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
due to a limitation of scope as we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidence on whether any adjustments were necessary to the
carrying amount of the Trade Receivables of nil balance and the related
deferred tax credit in respect of the Full Impairment, which had
consequential impact on (i) the Group's share of profits of associates for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and the carrying value of its
investments in associates as at that date; (i) the Group's profit attributable
to owners and profit attributable to non-controlling interests in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2021; and (iii) the equity
attributable to owners of the Company and the non-controlling interests
on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, there has been no additional information or development in
relation to the recoverability of the Trade Receivables. Accordingly, the
Group's management considered the Full Impairment of the Trade
Receivables of the Beiren Group brought forward is still appropriate as at
31 December 2022.
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The Group’s management was not able to provide us with adequate
evidence with respect to the financial conditions of the Debtors and the
Guarantor up to the date of this report, including financial information of
the Debtors to date, details of other assets (including nature, amounts, and
claims or pledges against such assets, if any) of the Guarantor that could
be pursued to settle the Trade Receivables. We were therefore unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence we considered necessary to
assess the recoverable amounts of the Trade Receivables. Given the
abovementioned scope limitations, there were no other satisfactory
procedures that we could perform to determine whether any adjustments
were necessary to the Trade Receivables of nil balance and the related
deferred tax credit in respect of the Full Impairment as at 31 December
2022 which consequentially impacted (i) the Group's share of profits of
associates for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the carrying value of
its investments in associates as at that date, (ii) the Group's loss
attributable to owners and profit attributable to non-controlling interests in
the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022; and (jii) the
equity attributable to owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interests on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matter described
below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to share of results of
associates and investments in associates in respect of the Beiren Group
(except for the share of loss allowance on expected credit loss, net of
deferred tax credit (“Full Impairment”) of certain trade receivables as
mentioned under “Basis for Qualified Opinion”).
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Key Audit Matter
BRETBR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESFNAHBEARETSRETER

Share of results of associates and investments in
associates in respect of Beiren Group (except for the
share of loss allowance on expected credit loss, net of
deferred tax credit ("Full Impairment”) of certain trade
receivables as mentioned under "Basis for Qualified
Opinion”)
FRLASENELBEARNEERRBEARNRE (R
BEERNERIFARE TRERERNARCEESRTRE
IHEEEE (HREEN REER) ([ 28EED BHERIN)

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
BEGZAEVBHREMET -

The Group has equity interests in a group of companies ®

(herein referred to as “Beiren Group”) which were accounted
for as associates under the equity method. The Beiren
Group's principal activities include operation of department
stores and supermarkets. The results of the Beiren Group is
highly dependent on the revenues derived from its retail
operations which typically comprise of high volume of low-
value transactions.
BEERERATEAMEARE] 2 —ERTTELRE - BIE
B EARIEBERR - WARBEIRZEB RS RELA
BEERBT - ARENEEREREKEETEEBEENW
A HEEEB - REFEHELZHNEEBERS -

The significance of the share of results and investments in the
Beiren Group's results warrants significant audit effort in this
area.

EEILAEERENNIEAEBEENREATZE 8
EBRETFEEMINAMES -
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Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter, amongst
other procedures, include but not limited to:

HPIRIB I ARETFENESET (BEEMIER) 2FEET
RA -

o Discussing with Group management and the Beiren
Group management to understand the performance and
significant events of the Beiren Group during the year in
order to identify risks that are significant to the Group.

o EEETRERIASEEREETI® AT
FRILAEENRBEREREN - HMBNY E£E
iEBERNER -

In relation to revenue recognition,

MR A L

° obtaining an understanding of the processes and
controls over revenue recognition;

TR AER R BIE KR B

° testing the key controls of IT systems and controls
over revenue recognition; and
BB MR R R WA RERIE S EaE 2 Eair
K

o testing revenue transactions by different revenue
streams, on a sample basis, to relevant supporting
documents such as contractual agreements,
invoices and cash settlement records.

AT - FRARMAR - BRAR S B84
BRAXM (e  ERNESEFLE) #17
B

o Assessing whether the financial information of the Beiren
Group was prepared in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies and reviewing adjustments to
conform to the Group's accounting policies.
FHEIEASBEMBEHEERE SEEITHREE -
WEMHEBHAE  UAFae ESENSHBUR -

Based on the procedures performed, we found that, in the
context of our audit of the Group's consolidated financial
statements, the Group's share of results of associates and
investments in associates in respect of the Beiren Group (except
for the share of Full Impairment of certain trade receivables as
mentioned under “Basis for Qualified Opinion”) were
supported by the available evidence.
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Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about (i) the Group's
share of profits of associates for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the carrying value of its investments in associates as at that date,(ii) the
Group'’s loss attributable to owners and profit attributable to
non-controlling interests in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2022; and (iii) the Group's equity attributable to owners of the Company
and the non-controlling interests on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022. Accordingly, we are unable to
conclude whether or not the other information is materially misstated with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %5 37 # £ £ 5} &5(4&)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Woon Yin Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEERkEMEEKRER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 Bl ZE —E - —F + - A=+—ALLFE

2022 2021
—E-= T —4F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
k3 AR¥T T AREET T
Revenue WA 4 1,127,588 1,299,736
Cost of sales $H B A AR (469,484) (509,374)
Gross profit EF 658,104 790,362
Other income, gains and losses HAa WA - Wz REE 6 229,184 130,473
Selling and distribution costs THE Ko A A (577,769) (523,725)
Administrative expenses THAX (235,932) (238,269)
Interest and investment income FERZE WA 7 26,165 51,331
Share of profit of a joint venture JEE—REERERT 18 19,117 28,300
Share of profits of associates JE (Rt & N i A 17 182,205 237,251
Finance costs BE KA 8 (115,653) (27,895)
Profit before taxation B 5 AT S ) 185,421 447,828
Taxation iR (78,848) (123,253)
Profit for the year N [E i K 10 106,573 324,575
Other comprehensive income Hfh 2 [ W A
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to bEEm e EFDEE
profit or loss: BwmozER
Exchange differences arising on translation of BMEGINEBRRESE
foreign operations I ERE 177 301
Other comprehensive income for the year REZAMEE R 177 301
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFTHENREE 106,750 324,876
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: REEZREN (EE),/
i A
Owners of the Company VAN/NCIE SN (24,441) 143,393
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR fE = 131,014 181,182
106,573 324,575
Total comprehensive (expense)/income Eh2mE (X)),
attributable to: Weas4a s
Owners of the Company VN/NCIE SN (24,264) 143,694
Non-controlling interests IR AR FE = 131,014 181,182
106,750 324,876
RMB RMB
AR¥ T AR
(Losses)/earnings per share attributable to owners  ANARIZA AL Z
of the Company Bk (&E), BT
— Basic and diluted — EBEARREE 13 (0.017) 0.098
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

at 31 December 2022 A =& — —

F+=-—A=+—8H

2022 2021
—_sE=-= —T-—fF
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
Mo AR¥T ARET T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RFE 14 5,267,550 5,501,009
Right-of-use assets PHEEE 15 2,237,164 2,404,868
Investment property wEME 16 1,261,645 1,292,427
Investments in associates REE N T HIEE 17 3,272,654 3,095,104
Investment in a joint venture R—EEETLENKE 18 360,057 372,045
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEE E 19 5,298 5,045
Other receivables H th E W k8 20 5,352 5,349
12,409,720 12,675,847
Current assets MENEE
Inventories T8 21 109,471 102,073
Trade and other receivables U BR SR % LA i R IE 20 211,378 285,389
Amount due from associates B U Bt N B FR 1B 23 108,994 110,865
Cash and cash equivalents B NIREEEBY 24 1,609,097 1,858,198
2,038,940 2,356,525
Current liabilities mEBaE
Trade and other payables EAERREMEMNKIE 25 1,094,625 1,461,974
Amount due to a joint venture B —MEAEEBEERIE 22 12,580 47,735
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of ~ FEfF B A R — &
subsidiaries FEIERR AR R 2 KA 29 26,142 26,142
Tax payable J& B8 23,984 26,902
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITIEE — —FREIH 26 1,120,000 100,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 105,447 100,521
Contract liabilities AHEaE 28 9,691 12,260
2,392,469 1,775,534
Net current (liabilities)/assets FRB(BE)BE (353,529) 580,991
Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITRE ——FRIH 26 1,120,000 2,240,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 82,960 188,407
Deferred tax liabilities EEFTEEE 19 54,367 48,085
1,257,327 2,476,492
10,798,864 10,780,346

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) %= & 81 7% it i %(4)
at31 December 2022 A —E-_—F+_-_A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= B4
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR®T T ARBTTT

Capital and reserves BAR K #E
Share capital [N 30 6,291 6,291
Reserves G 9,304,502 9,328,766
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RABIHEAR ANEGER 9,310,793 9,335,057
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R 1,488,071 1,445,289
10,798,864 10,780,346

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 158 were approved ~ F74Z 158 EGa B MEREEFEN T - =
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2023 and ~ F=A =+ H#t/EREKENE - THTIEFK

were signed on its behalf by: R"EE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy
BIEEELE BRI /A
Executive Director Non-Executive Director
HiTEF FHITEE

76 Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2022



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEREREER

forthe year ended 31 December 202 BIZE —E - —F + - A=+—HAILLFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KRAREARERD
Statutory
surplus Capital Capital Non-
Share Share reserve  redemption Reserve  Translation  Retained controlling
capital premium (note 31) reserve (note 31) reserve profits Total interests Total
EERS
LHE Bx  BAGR FER
BE  RGEE (K31 WEFE  (FE31) RERE REER @t 3 #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTL ARETL ARETR ARETR AR%BTR ARMTL ARETRT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 wZZ=-%-f-8 620 6543132 133234 593 78719 (115,663) 2,545,057 9,191,363 134033 10,531,699
Profit for the year REERT — - - - - — 143393 143393 181,182 324,575
Other comprehensive income for the year RERAMRENE - - - - - 301 - 301 - 301
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERERGER — — — — — 301 143393 143,694 181,182 324,876
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders BRFEREREMEE — — — — — — - - (76,229) (76,229)
Transfer of reserves HEGE — — 6,837 - - — (6,837) — — —
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZFZ-§+-A=+-HR
—Z-Z4%-fF-B 6291 6543132 140,071 593 78719 (115362 2681613 9,335,057 1445289 10,780,346
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BB)/1F - — — — — — (24,441) (24,441) 131,014 106,573
Other comprehensive income for the year FERAMZANE - - - - - 177 - 177 - 177
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year AEFRERE/ (%) 85 — — - - - 177 (24,441) (24,264) 131,014 106,750
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders BREERBREARE — — — — — — — — (88,232) (88,232)
Transfer of reserves HEGE — — 4,759 — - — @759 — — -
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZF+-A=t-H 620 6,543,132 144,830 593 78719 (115,185 2652413 9310793 1488071 10,798,864
FIRFEEEERAT —S-—FFRK 77



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 Bl ZE —E - —F + - A=+—ALLFE

2022 2021
—E=-= B4
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREFTT
Operating activities AT
Profit before taxation Bk 5 B 185,421 447,828
Adjustments for: IEYEH AT A2 -
Interest income on bank deposits and RITERZFEWA (26,165) (51,168)
other Interest income KB B A
Investment income from financial assets at fair value BAFER AER —_ (163)
through profit or loss TREENRE
WA
Finance costs BEKA 115,653 27,895
Net exchange (gain)/loss HIEH (W), EiE (7,008) 2,008
Gain on lease modification EETHE M ZANU S — (16,953)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - WE N 245,763 132,629
e
Depreciation of investment property SEMENE 30,782 5,128
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEEFNE 167,704 125,499
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWME  BEK 172 706
X EE
Share of profit of a joint venture ElE—HeaERE (19,117) (28,300)
il
Share of profits of associates JE(GEE & R RDEF (182,205) (237,251)
Loss allowance/(reversal of loss allowance) on JEWEERCBHEE 2,162 (228)
expected credit losses for trade receivables B8 BERE S
(EiERERD)
Operating cash flows before movements in working LEEFHRLER 513,162 407,630
capital BRE
Increase in inventories FEEN (7,398) (32,583)
Increase in properties under development BRI - (20,973)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables JFE LA R TR % LA i LA R 66,180 (71,688)
B, (g m)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to a joint venture B —MEaEERE (35,156) 14,508
CRL), /38
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables JE AN BR FR M E b FE AN 3R (189,796) 155,802
B OR ), /38 hn
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHBaECRDY), 8 (2,569) 3,167
Cash generated from operations KREEBFRERE 344,423 455,863
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EHFBETCEMSH (75,738) (112,725)
Net cash from operating activities KEXBREREFH 268,685 343,138
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) %48 &% 8 X&)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z — T —_—_F +_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTT
Investing activities REEH
Interest received on bank deposits BUIRITFER 2 F & 31,833 39,768
Dividend received from associates WEE N Tz B WA B 6,526 2,893
Dividend and interest received from a joint venture H—EeELEZBEW 31,105 27,883
&8 K A B
Investment income received from financial assets at HErAFEFAERZ - 912
fair value through profit or loss THEEDWKRE
WA
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BB ERE (189,791) (199,183)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERATE ABE — 86,500
fair value through profit or loss Z e REEMSRIE
Repayment of loan from a joint venture —HEEREZER 50,000 50,000
Loan advance to a joint venture mA—EAECENRN (50,000) (50,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - WE KR - 40
equipment FRiGFI8
Net cash used in investing activities REGSMARSFHE (120,327) (41,187
Financing activities BMEEH
Repayment of bank borrowings EERTEE (100,000) (60,000)
Repayments of principal elements of leases liabilities ERHEaGE LA (100,521) (96,646)
i
Interest on leases liabilities paid HEaEZEMNFE (14,158) (19,025)
Other interest paid BT EAMFE (101,733) (97,053)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders BIR 46 IR AR AR R (88,232) (76,229)
% &

Net cash used in financing activities MEESAARSFHE (404,644) (348,953)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents HekReEEYHD (256,286) (47,002)
HEE
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FUReRREEEY 1,858,198 1,906,907
Effect of foreign exchange rate difference [ERZRH o ZE 7,185 (1,707)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FHRBeLREFEY 1,609,097 1,858,198

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2022 Bl ZE —E - —F + - A=+—ALLFE

80

General

Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2016 and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are set out in section headed
"Corporate Information” to the annual report. The Company acts as
an investment holding company and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are the operation of “Jiuguang” department stores and
related retailing business as well as property investment in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas (“Mr. Lau”), who is also the Chairman and executive director
of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") which is the functional currency of the Company.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of those
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("HKCO") (Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for the financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), which
are measured at fair value. The preparation of consolidated
financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the current year's presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B 7 $& 3% M 53(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z — T —_—_F +_A=+—HIFE

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB354 million. Included in its
current liabilities was RMB1,120 million, representing the
current portion of an outstanding project loan amounted to
RMB2,240 million as at 31 December 2022. On 26 December
2022, the Group entered into a new secured loan agreement
in respect of a RMB3,300 million 15-year term loan facility with
a syndicate of banks. The RMB3,300 million facility was fully
drawn down on 6 January 2023 and part of which was used to
repay in full the RMB2,240 million outstanding project loan.
The new loan facility is repayable progressively semi-annually
with the first repayment starting from 14 April 2023 and the
annual repayment amount in the first and second year will be
RMB20 million and RMB40 million respectively.

Based on terms of the new bank facility as abovementioned
and the cash resources available as at the end of January
2023, the Directors consider that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the coming 12 months from 31 December
2022. Accordingly, the Directors consider it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

(i)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following amendments for
the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2022:

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
(Amendments) Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use
HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
(Amendments) of Fulfilling a Contract
HKFRS 3 Reference to the
(Amendments) Conceptual Framework

Accounting Guideline 5
(Amendments)

Merger Accounting for
Common Control
Combinations

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Annual improvement
projects

The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 202 BlZE — T —_—_F+_A=+—HILFE
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82

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2022 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS
39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a joint
venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and a joint venture used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a Group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position where the
Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. The revenues are
presented as revenue in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

For direct sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, being at the point the customer
purchases the goods at the department stores.

For income from concessionaire sales, the Group recognises
commission income over time which it is entitled and is based
on certain percentage of sales made by the concessionaires in
accordance with the terms of contracts. When they fail to
meet the minimum guarantee income in accordance with the
terms of certain contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income as it is the amount that the Group has
the right to receive.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
For service income, it represents income from concessionaires
for displaying their products and billboards in department
stores. The revenue is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation when the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group'’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including obligation to provide goods or services
to customers on complementary basis and customer’s options
to acquire additional goods or services for free or at a
discount in future granted under loyalty reward program, the
Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative standalone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Accounting for unredeemed gift certificates and reward
points under customer loyalty program

The unredeemed gift certificates and reward points under
customer loyalty program is recorded as contract liabilities,
and reflect the value that is expected to be redeemed, i.e.
anticipated breakage.

Breakage will need to be estimated considering the guidance
on constraining estimates of variable consideration as well as
the Group's historical experience with gift certificates and
loyalty points under loyalty reward program. Revenue is
recognised in regard to breakage in the proportion of gift
certificates and loyalty points redeemed in that period and
likely to result in the acceleration of revenue when the
possibility of redemption becomes remote.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
recognises the amount of consideration to which it is entitled
using the most likely amount, which better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled.

The amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Group updates the estimated transaction price based on
issued statements to consignors and concessionaires
(including assessment of whether the variable consideration is
constrained) to represent fairly the circumstances present at
the end of the reporting period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the
other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified goods or
services before these good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified goods or services by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that goods or services is transferred to the customers. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

The Group acts as an agent for concessionaire as the Group
does not control the specific goods provided by the
consignors and concessionaires before goods are transferred
to a customers.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy.

Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using straight-line
method over the following useful lives:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease terms or
40 years

Leasehold Over the shorter of lease terms or
improvements 10 years

Plant and machinery ~ 5to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of
right-of-use assets provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost comprises right-of-use
assets, development and construction expenditure, borrowing
costs capitalised and other direct costs attributable to the
development. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price at which the property can be realised less related
expenses.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including related
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to

write off the cost of the investment properties over their

estimated useful lives. Items of investment property are after

taking into account their estimated residual value, using

straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease terms or
40 years

Land use right Over the lease terms
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(e)

()

Investment property (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probably that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At the date of
reclassification, its cost and accumulated depreciation are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and become its
cost and accumulated depreciation for accounting purposes.
If an owner- occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Such determination is made on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement, regardless of whether
the arrangements take the legal form of a lease.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis.

(i) Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group, as a lessee,
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Leases (continued)

(f)

(i)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a
similar economic environment with similar term and
condition.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the Group as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until
effective. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between the principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(f) Leases (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

FRPEREARRAF

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the followings:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets are amortised over the shorter
of the assets’ useful lives and the lease terms on a
straight-line basis.

Right-of-use assets linked to owner occupied buildings
are measured applying the cost model relevant to that
specific class of property, plant and equipment.

Low value lease

Payments associated with all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss.

The Group as lessor

Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land under operating leases, are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as
a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Leases (continued)

(v)  The Group as lessee (continued)
Leasehold land and buildings
When the Group makes payment for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
"prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is
under finance lease.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(h)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive expense and
accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

@i

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based
on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and a joint venture, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

0]

0]

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The Group considers the lease as a single transaction in which
the asset and liability are integrally linked, so there is no net
temporary difference at inception. Subsequently, as
differences arise on settlement of the liability and the
amortisation of the leased asset, there will be a net temporary
difference on which deferred tax is recognised.

Impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets are estimated
individually, or when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

0]

Impairment losses on non-financial assets (continued)
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income (“"FVOCI")
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

FRPEREARRAF

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 (including trade and
other receivables and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see note 35 for further details.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

FRPEREARRAF

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credlit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

FRPEREARRAF

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definition of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amount due to a joint venture and amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

m

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees render the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker ("CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the chief
executive of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade
and other receivables are generally due for settlement within
30 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial
instruments and short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(v)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.

To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

(w) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

(x) Dividend distribution
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-_FFH
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Significant estimates and assumptions concerning the future may be
required in selecting and applying accounting methods and policies
in these financial statements. The Group bases its estimates and
assumptions on historical experience and various other assumptions
that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates or assumptions.

The following is a review of the more significant estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements.

(a) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward
tax losses
At 31 December 2022, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB816,111,000 (2021: RMB651,728,000)
available for offset against future profits. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group reviewed previously
unrecognised tax losses and determined that it was probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. As a consequence, a deferred tax asset
of RMB4,000,000 was recognised for these losses. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, deferred tax asset of
RMB4,000,000 was maintained for tax losses because the
Group reviewed the profit forecasts of relevant entity and
determined that it was probable that taxable profits will be
available and the tax losses can be utilised.

The realisation of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the estimated future assessable profits or taxable
temporary difference are more than previously estimated, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
the revised estimate takes place.

3.

B ik R A B
REAEEREAMAE  BEEHEAR
ATNHEREEZHRKEMHZIEN -
AT AT & W AR o

R EFGE A RBERIA KA B AR %
EPBHERE > AUREFREREERED
BEXEFHREBR - AKENRBEBELR
LRERAREERBEATBRNAEZZHAE
R E A ET RRR - BRERAT 8
GHZEHFHEBRAM -

T i — R SR B B B E
e 3t R R -

(@) AABEABRZELENREERR

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H0" ' &K
SEEARBHAREBROARE
816,111,000 (Z T ——4F : AR
651,728,0007T) + o] BYEE I H &R
MeHEzE—E-_—F+=-_A=+—
HIEFE AEEEMHBTRER
MIEEE WETREEAEHAN
FERRB R AL ST IEES I8 - Bt - 3h
ZEERERECHEBEEARYE
4000000 - EHE-_ZT - —F+—
A=+t—BLFE HHEEEE
FIEE R IE & & A K 4,000,000
T RARASEENEBERN
st K FBOR) - 3 7 TE A] BB 1T IE B AR A
A BRI B ARIEEE -

EERBEEZER T EIURNA
BREE T BRGNS R
Bi 25 o i B R AT ERTE A
HERRE R EZRREAEARS -
FEELENELEHRBEERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z — T —_—_F +_A=+—HIFE

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 3.

BASR S Rk 5T R H i ()

(continued)

(b)

Provision for ECL of trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings/past due status as groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group's historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable supportable
and available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances and
credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision for ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about ECL and the Group's trade receivables are
disclosed in note 20 and 35 respectively.

(b)

BUWRRAREEER 2 BB
7R ER B {50 P 18 4 AR e 5 B B M RR AK
ZHEBEREER - BEXUARE
iR BRI REE  BEER
MEBEEAN T RESAETHA -
BREEEENAEBELENEX -
I E BB AN BB EH KA
BRANATEG 2 & B I BB 2 Al
BIEER - REEREAH - BLE
RENTGENFME MELEEH
ZEBTETUNER - I HAE
REHREEREZ BEIRRE
BHEE BB EE R o

TEHEEEBE BEYHTEHA
EHEE - EHEREEBERAEA
SEEWERZER  DRIRME
20835 I FE o

4 Revenue 4 WA
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods WAEREEFARMBETHEERNE
sold by the Group to customers, net of discounts and sales related e K i W AR TEDRL AT 0 K s S AR R AR TE - 2R
taxes, income from concessionaire sales, service income and rental BEFEEEE ZWA - BRIEWA A R
income during the year, and is analysed as follows: ERA - DT
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFTT
Recognised at a point in time: EEERB R
Sales of goods — direct sales ERHE —BEHEE 430,287 568,676
Recognised over time: PEE R ERR
Income from concessionaire sales REBHFEREHEE Z WA 440,992 585,289
Service income AR 75U A 31,762 38,247
Revenue from contracts with customers KEZEFPAHZIA 903,041 1,192,212
Rental income HAEWA 224,547 107,524
Total revenue LU N 1,127,588 1,299,736
FAEPEEEERAT —S-—F5H 13



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 202 BlZE — T —_—_F+_A=+—HILFE

14

Revenue (continued)
All the above revenue is derived in the PRC.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

o For sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has been transferred to customers, being at the point
the customer purchases goods at department stores.
Payment of transaction price is due immediately at the point
the customer purchases the goods.

J Income from concessionaire sales is generated from sales of
goods by the relevant concessionaires based on certain
percentage of sales in accordance with the terms of contracts.
When the concessionaires fail to meet the minimum
guarantee income in accordance with the terms of contracts,
the minimum guarantee amount is recognised as income. The
Group recognised revenue in the net amount of consideration
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for the
service, which is the commission it is entitled upon the sale of
goods by the concessionaire. The concessionaire
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the
Group's performance in processing each sales transaction as
and when each transaction is processed.

o Service income is generated from the Group's promotion,
product display and billboards services at its department
stores. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time.

o Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

4

A ()
EFIRARAR R EE -

AEERRAXRAETFPANZINATIER
IRZ N

. REMEEME  WATIRERE
tEEETES (EFPRBEER
BEmi) R - XS EBRZFIAR
EFBEEEMEAIRRH -

. KRBT EEEmEERA
TRBEDGR TREEETES
A8 - ERFFEERERBALD
AR E D RAERERAR - &IER
EREEBRWA - REBUR(E
SREFEERRA > AEEH LIS
BREIMRE B EREEES
M AW Z ML - 8RR EE
BIAR HE - 57 B HE R B R &
HRAEERERAHER S ZH

N3
ZS o
I

. REBWAEEEARE 2HE £
BEERNRTERRESE %%
ARIsBEZ R MR BB (R -

. HHE W ARE T & 1 5% BALL DI HERR -
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z — T —_—_F +_A=+—HIFE

Segment information

The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” focusing
on operation of department stores, retailing and related business as
well as property investment in the PRC. This operating segment has
been identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform to HKFRSs
as disclosed in note 2, that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM") (i.e. the chief executive of the
Company). The CODM regularly reviews revenue analysis and the
profit for the year of the Group as a whole to make decisions about
resource allocation. Accordingly, no separate segment information
other than entity-wide information is presented.

The Group's non-current assets are all based in the PRC. The Group
has no customers that contributed over 10% of the total revenue of

the Group for both years.

Other income, gains and losses

DEER
RIBBR BB RS R FEeR (& nE]
REBMNSEEBRBE —KEHI &
ERFELEEEL - TE - HEAEBI
RYIFAEE o L& 5 80 T a0 b 31 2F7 3
% REFEEBMBEREENN ST
FRENDEEREET  THEFLE
RN ([EBEERBADBIEARFNE
BWITE ) EHIER - BRACERKATH
EREEEOMRAEEEBFNGF
MEHE RS ERE AW E25E e
BRSNS E R 5 BB -

REENFERBEEDILIARBRAEM -
PREFE  AEBUETEFERBBA
EEBIA10% o

HWA -~ WEREE

2022 2021

—E=-= T —%F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET ARBET T

Management fee income EIEE WA 122,182 56,818
Credit card recharges ERFERLDH 17,748 27,158
Project income SEREN N 1,984 3,460
Government subsidies (note) BT 8 B (P %) 40,130 3,620
Net exchange gain/(loss) SRIE N S (E58) 7,008 (2,008)
Income from lessees R E A ABURA 903 811
Gain on lease modification CHE SN EA — 16,953
Car park income =31 PN 14,019 5,543
Others A, 25,210 18,118
229,184 130,473

Note:

The amount represents government subsidies received from the PRC local
authorities for subsidising its operational activities by the Group. All of them had

no specific condition attached.

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH

e
ZeEREGENSEBETORGRY  fEAAE

BT RSB ROFEB) o P 7 B) AR T A
F i o
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Interest and investment income 7 FERKREWA
2022 2021
—s=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFIT
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZ FBHA 26,165 50,709
Investment income from financial assets at B AFEFABRZZ ERIEE
FVTPL ZIEWA — 163
Other interest income H o F B A - 459
26,165 51,331
Finance costs 8 REMRK
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AR®ETFTT
Interest expenses on: FEFX
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 101,495 105,873
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 14,158 19,025
115,653 124,898
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction in  J& : RERE TR REEF
progress and properties under MEZER LR
development _ (97,003)
115,653 27,895
Taxation 9 MHIE
2022 2021
- —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFIT
The tax charge comprises: BMIAXHBETSIEE
Current tax: AREARIIA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ETISH 72,116 107,440
Withholding tax TR 663 657
72,779 108,097
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BEFETR(R%) B
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR RS 40 "
Withholding tax SEEIE) — (31)
40 (20)
Deferred tax charge (note 19) FEIERTE S H (HEE19) 6,029 15,176
78,848 123,253

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the

PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

RIBFBEDERETE((REMBBED
MZERFBOEERGED - RMEFES
P8 A AR R 23 25% o
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for the year ended 31 December 02 #{Z — T = —F += A =

9 Taxation (continued)

T-BLFE

No provision for taxation in other jurisdictions has been made as the

Group has no assessable taxable profits arising from operations

outside the PRC.

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

BiE ()

AEBEWEPBEUINEMBIEE SR E
BELRRBUEHN - B TR ELFELTHIEA

B

AEERBEXHELRS

bi=k

& N HoAth 2 R

@R FRER AR M 2 HER T

2022 2021
—g=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F AREFTT
Profit before taxation % B Bl a1 185,421 447,828
Tax at applicable income tax rate of 25% BR B RI5%ETE 2 Fi1E 46,355 111,957
Tax effect of share of profit of a joint venture JE{E—fE&ERE&EF 2 HiIE
2 (4,779) (7,075)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates FEIGEEE N RN E AN 2 HIBR 2 (45,551) (59,313
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BEARNMBMAZ HIEZE
purpose (9,227) (2,493)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax A FAFEFA L 2 HBEFZE
purpose 5,519 13,846
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised THEANEBEECTIEYE 77,114 56,509
Tax effect of recognition of previously HREAAERNRIEESBZ
unrecognised tax losses MIAR & (63) (4,000)
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERR(B%)EBHE 40 (20)
Withholding tax TEFRR 9,916 12,694
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses R RAIARERTIEER 2
previously not recognised MIERE — (42)
Tax effect of previously unrecognised ERIRBEROERMEEZE
temporary differences B & (476) 1,190
Tax charge for the year REFRIESZ 78,848 123,253

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 HlZE —_ T _—_F+_A=

10

118

Profit for the year

+—AILEE

10

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6 B R

AEZRNEME(GEA) FFIEA :

2022 2021
—EF_C —E_—
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Directors’ remuneration (note 11): EF5WE (FIFE1) -
Fees Lk 685 666
Salary and allowances e KoRah 6,167 5,534
Bonus TEAT 9,187 10,633
16,039 16,833
Other staff costs, excluding retirement BRIRRRBAIET SN2
benefits scheme contributions HAth 8 TR 183,552 183,265
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, iR K1&E FIET B FURE M
net of forfeited contributions for staff 8T H#X 9,162 8,038
192,714 191,303
Total staff costs BETIHAAR 208,753 208,136
Auditor’s remuneration I3 il e 2,985 2,710
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BENKEREZTE
equipment 245,763 132,629
Depreciation of investment property KEMEZITE 30,782 5,128
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZINE 167,704 125,499
Loss allowance/(reversal of loss allowance) BRI 2 AR B E B Y 518
on expected credit losses for trade BB,/ (EBEERR)
receivables 2,162 (228)
Expenses related to variable lease payments S A] EEHE M 14,495 47,275
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERRiBZEE
equipment 172 706
Gain on lease modification (EREEN-GE - 0ki6 - (16,593)
Expenses relating to low-value leases KEEEE Z BN 1,488 606
Expenses relating to short-term leases REEE 2 M 223 335
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R R FEXR 361,223 471,605
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11 Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’ 1
remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and HKCO, is as follows:

EX ERUTEREEMS

REBGER S LR REE QR E
MAFEEEREFRPTEMSOT

2022 =
Non-
Executive  Executive
Director Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
HBITEE FHTES BYFHITES
Lau Luen Cheung
Hung, Chan Chor Lam Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas* Ling, Amy Kwong Wai  Raymond Mei Han Total
HIE el RER KRR RAR ST RER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR®ETR AR¥ETRT AR¥TR
Fees e 169 129 129 129 129 685
Other emoluments Hih &
Salaries and other benefits HeREMBEF 6,167 — — — — 6,167
Bonus* TEAT* 9,187 - - - - 9,187
Total emoluments [k 15,523 129 129 129 129 16,039
2021 —B-—-F
Non-
Executive Executive
Director Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
WITEF FWTEF BIUFNTESR
Lau Luen Cheung
Hung,  Chan Chor Lam  Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas*  Ling, Amy Kwong Wai Raymond Mei Han Total
Eldey R AR RIRX REMR fst
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT AR®TT AR®TT AR®TR
Fees we 166 125 125 125 125 666
Other emoluments Hith il &
Salaries and other benefits He REMBEF 5,534 — — — — 5,534
Bonus* TE4L* 10,633 — — — — 10,633
Total emoluments R 16,333 125 125 125 125 16,833

* The bonus is determined having regard to the Group’s and the executive

director’s performance for each of the reporting period.

# Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is also the chief executive of the Company.

The executive director's emoluments shown above were for his
services as the chief executive in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent

non-executive directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH

* ANSERRBEAKERNTESERE
RS HIRRMmMEE
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120

Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’ 11
remuneration (continued)

During the current year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to

the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or

as compensation for loss of office (2021: Same). None of the
directors has waived any remuneration during the year (2021: Same).

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2022, one of them (2021: one) was a director of the
Company whose remuneration is disclosed above and the remaining

four (2021: four) are employees of the Group, details of whose

Eigg EEBITEREEMS

NAFE  AEBTERAEELHHE
ARBIHEEMAREELEAMALEE
CHESHBBHE(CTE % ER) -
NARFE REEERETMNHE (ZF
Z—F R - BEZTZ=_F+=A
=t+—ALFE FAEEREHERFAL
F (2T —F: —R)REARTE
HORBIMER EXHBERBTHE (=2

remuneration were as follows: Z—F:EB)AREREEREE - HE 2B
SFBERIET
2022 2021
—==-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBETF T
Employees: ’E:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R REMER 4,519 4,100
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRAEFFT B 399 379
Performance related incentive payments HRIBEMHIES 1,253 3,468
6,171 7,947

The number of the five highest paid individuals of the Group whose

FEBRERSFALTZHFHNFUATE

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: :
2022 2021
—E=-= —E=—
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AEL
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T 2 1,500,000 7T 1 —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T Z 2,000,000 7T 3 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T % 2,500,000/ 7T — 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,0007% 7T — 1
HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 17,000,001 % 7T 2 17,500,0007% 7T 1 —
HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000 19,500,001 7t Z 20,000,0007% 7T — 1

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the four highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2021: Same).

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—RHIEE"
REBUERNNEERFEEXFEE
ARSI HEEMAREELEAMALEE
RS BREE(CE - —F A -
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12 Dividends 12 RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the BHE_Z__F+_A=+T—HLFE "
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil). AR FAE T A 58 A AR RO T 2 B R Ak
B(ZF=—%F:)-
13 (Losses)/earnings per share 13 SR (ER) BF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per share RARBEAEANBEERERREE (B
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following 18B) /BRI RENTEE mtE -
data:
(Losses)/earnings figures are calculated as follows: (F8) /BNETFHENT
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F ARETTT
(Losses)/earnings (B#R)BF
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to RABEE ANEERRFE
owners of the Company (E1#8), a7l (24,441) 143,393
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Number of shares KRG EE
Weighted average number of ordinary LR NE T8 E
shares 1,464,449 1,464,449
The diluted (losses)/earnings per share for the year ended HE_Z_—_F+_A=+—RHILFEN
31 December 2022 equals to the basic (losses)/earnings per share as WERER(EE)  BNERERER (&
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares to issue during the 1B)/BF - TERE RS A B #
year (2021: Same). SEERER(ZTEZ—F  BR) -

AIRPEREERAT —S-—F5H 121
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14 Property, plant and equipment 14 YE- -RBRERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
B
HE BE BELE
B NEEE R#EH PET AE HRIR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARETR ARETT ARBTRT ARBTT ARET:R
Cost KR
At 1 January 2021 RZZ=—-%—-fA-H 2,174,943 716,315 153,317 56,698 4,685 3,382,108 6,488,066
Additions NE — — 22 10,143 1,600 484,887 496,652
Transfer from property under RHERPMEED
development 87,846 - - - - - 87,846
Transfer B 3,153,180 — 660,611 53,204 — (3,866,995) —
Disposals/write-off &/ — 6] (5,485) (1,466) — — (6954)
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ-F+-A=+-H 5,415,969 716,312 808,465 118,579 6,285 — 7,065,610
Additions NE — 11,188 — 1,288 — — 12,476
Disposals/write-off e/ W — — (1,209) (529) - - (1,738)
At 31 December 2022 RZE--F+-A=+-H 5,415,969 727,500 807,256 119,338 6,285 — 7,076,348
Depreciation &
At 1 January 2021 i Sy S =| 631,881 654,088 102,941 46,139 3131 — 1,438,180
Provided for the year ERiE 88,516 23778 17,214 2817 k! - 132,629
Disposals/write-off &/ — 6] 4918) (1,287) — — (6,208)
At 31 December 2021 WZEZ-F+ZA=+-H 720,397 677,863 115,237 47,669 3,435 — 1,564,601
Provided for the year FREE 148 875 22427 65,106 8917 438 - 245,763
Disposals/write-off e/ W — — (1,091) @75) - - (1,566)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+ZA=+-H 869,272 700,290 179,252 56,111 3873 - 1,808,798
Net book values EHFE
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+ZA=+-H 4,546,697 27,210 628,004 63,227 2412 — 5,267,550
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—§+ZA=+-H 4,695,572 38,449 693,228 70,910 2,850 — 5,501,009

Depreciation expense for the year includes RMB245,763,000 (2021:
RMB132,629,000) provided for property, plant and equipment,
RMB30,782,000 (2021: RMB5,128,000) provided for investment
property and RMB167,704,000 (2021: RMB125,499,000) provided for
right-of-use assets. Depreciation expense of RMB97,540,000 (2021:
RMB29,549,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
RMB272,248,000 (2021: RMB213,372,000) in selling and distribution
costs and RMB74,461,000 (2021: RMB20,335,000) in administrative
expenses respectively.

REEZWERIBREADE  BELK
I 2 BB & 58 A R #245,763,0007T
(ZZF=——F : AR¥132,629,0007T) * A
WEMEER 2 BE2 T ARK30,782,000
TL(ZE=—%F : AR5,128,0007T) A K&
BERREEFLZBEcEARE
167,704,000 (Z T = —F : ARK
125,499,0007T) ° ITEFR S D IR HEEK A
th i A R#97,540,0007T (— B = —4 ¢
AR M29,549,0007T) + FEHE ko A
th 7 44 A R#272,248,0007T (B = —4F
AR #213,372,00070) K& 1T B 2 P S 8
ANR#T74,461,000C (ZFEZ—F : AR
20,335,0007T) °
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15 Right-of-use assets 15 ERAREE
Land Buildings Total
+ it BF et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARET R ARETR
Cost R
At 1 January 2021 R-_ZE-_—F—H—H 2,239,383 579,035 2,818,418
Amount capitalised in construction in REZIEEREE (41,591) — (41,591)
progress k-l
Lease modification 1ER] HE W — (14,461) (14,461)
At 1 January 2022 and R-E-__%—H—H 2,197,792 564,574 2,762,366
31 December 2022 E-—_E-_—_F+=A
=+—H
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2021 R—ZE-_—F—H—H 34,380 208,008 242,388
Provided for the year FREE 25,670 99,829 125,499
Lease modification BT HE W= — (10,389) (10,389)
At 1 January 2022 N-E-_—_F#—HF—H 60,050 297,448 357,498
Provided for the year FNEAE 68,072 99,632 167,704
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_+=A 128,122 397,080 525,202
=+—H
Net book values REFEE
At 31 December 2022 R-EBE-_—_+=A 2,069,670 167,494 2,237,164
=+—H
At 31 December 2021 W_ZE-—F+—-A4 2,137,742 267,126 2,404,868
=+—H
16 Investment property 16 REYE
RMB’000
AREEF T
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2021 RZZT=Z—F—H—H —
Transfer from properties under development RERPYEER 1,297,555
At 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 RZBE-_—_F—A—HK
LT ZF+ZA=+—H 1,297,555
Depreciation wE
At 1 January 2021 RZZT=Z—F—H—H —
Provided for the year FREE 5,128
At 1 January 2022 WN-_E-_—F—H—H 5,128
Provided for the year FREE 30,782
At 31 December 2022 R=ZB=-=f+=A=+—H 35,910
Net book values REFE
At 31 December 2022 R-EBE-_—_F+=-A=+—H 1,261,645
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+-_A=+—H 1,292,427
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Investment property (continued) 16 REWE (E)
Investment property of RMB1,297,555,000 was transferred from FEAKFPLOR_E_—F+—AFE
properties under development after Shanghai Jiuguang Center &« AR#1,297,555000C 1t 3 B P W %
commenced business in November 2021. HAKREWE -
Depreciation expense of RMB30,782,000 (2021: RMB5,128,000) has S A ARME30,782,000T (ZE=—4F :
been expensed in cost of sales. AR #5,128,00070) 2 T ER X ERIEE
PXAN P S EH -
The fair values of investment properties as at 31 December 2022 are RZZZZF+RA=+—8 &AM
approximately RMB3,244,000,000 (2021: RMB3,307,000,000). The 2N EL A AR S,244,000,0000T (ZF
valuation of the Group's investment properties was determined by ——% : AR¥3,307,000,0007T) © A&
an independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and REWEZHEHBEERM T EETR
Advisory Limited, who holds a recognised and relevant professional ETMREBEAERAGEITHEEE ° %
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category TRERARMEEEEER  WHEH
of the investment properties being valued, at open market values. HEMBEREME W RERNEE AR
Mg o
As at 31 December 2022, investment property of RMB1,261,645,000 RZEZZF+ZA=+—H" AR¥
(2021: RMB1,292,427,000) were pledged to secure the Group's bank 1,261,645000L(ZFE = —F : AR
loan facilities of RMB2,240,000,000 (2021: RMB2,340,000,000). 1,292,427,0007T) 2 R EMECWEIR - 1F
RS EER AR 2,240,000,0007C (=&
——% : AR#2,340,000,0007T) RITE K
BEZER -
Investments in associates 17 RBEERIANRE
2022 2021
—g=-= T —F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Unlisted, at cost FE b AR 1,228,800 1,228,800
Discount arising on acquisition of RIBEFEWE RS R A8
additional interest in an associate in INEREEZITE
prior years 98,416 98,416
Gain arising on deemed disposal of WA E— S R aliEa
interest in an associate 2 £ 7 ek 11,297 11,297
Share of post-acquisition profits and FEAG B 1% 2 T R HoAh 2 TE UL
other comprehensive income, net of =  HBRAR B
dividends 1,934,141 1,756,591
3,272,654 3,095,104
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17 Investments in associates (continued)
At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had interests in the
following associates:

17 RBEQRANRKRE (&)

R —FR-_TE-_—F+-_A=+—
A AEBRTHBERRHEAER

Place/country of Proportion of nominal
Form of business establishment/ Principal place of  value of issued capital/registered Proportion of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation capital voting power held Principal activities
RI/ERAT ) .
REZE EBERES 0 /AR TEREHY BRARE/ERRAEEL S FERERLA TEXEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CE - S 4 —E-CE - 3

Shijiazhuang Beiguo Renbai  Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Investment holding of a
Group Company group of companies
Limited engaging in the
("Beiren Group”) operation of
(note a) department stores,

supermarkets

AEHLENERERR  EfiRT M P 49% 9% 49% 9% REBEERETERZ
BEARA(EAEE]) SENAZREER
(W.&a)

Beiguo Shangcheng Incorporation PRC PRC 16.05% 16.05% 16.05% 16.05%  Investment holding of a
Company Limited" group of companies
("Beiguo”) (note b) engaging in the

operation of
department stores,
supermarkets

PEEARNBRAT FEERIL HE il 16.05% 16.05% 16.05% 1605% HEARERBAEHEZ
(M2l (W?b\ SENRAZREER

Hebei Beiguo Future Mall - Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Retailing business in the
Company Limited? PRC
("Future Mall") (note ¢)

ML ERATESERE A HE HE 49% 49% 49% W% ERERRTERE
AR ([EXTRES))

GED)

Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment holding of a
company engaging in
operation of
restaurants in the PRC

BREARLA ELiE o 48 50% 0% 50% W AREREAREEID
AZREER

Notes Pt T

(a) At 31 December 2022, the Group's 60% (2021: 60%) owned subsidiary, (a) RZZE-_—F+-A=+—H AEEHE
Wingold Limited, indirectly held equity interest of 49% (2021: 49%) in Beiren 60% (ZZF Z—1F : 60%) ez 2 M B A B 72
Group. The Group does not participate in the management of the CHERAFIMERGIAFEEHION(Z
day-to-day operation of the operating entities within Beiren Group. T 49%) kAR c AEBIY TS E

BRI ASEAZEERNAEEE-

(b) At 31 December 2022, A4t BRI E AR A & (Hebei Xu Yuan Investment (b) RIE-_—_F+-_A=+—H8  BE2BRRQ
Company Limited?), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Wingold AIMEZE2EWNBARTILERIREBRA
Limited, and Beiren Group held direct equity interest of 16.05% (2021: AR AERE D RIFE16.05% (ZF = —
16.05%) and 73.95% (2021: 73.95%) in Beiguo respectively. Among the F:16.05%) &73.95% (=F = — i
seven directors (2021: seven) in Beiguo, two (2021: two) directors were the 73.95%) 1t Bl B B AR A RE 25 o Eit. A
representatives of the Group. The Group does not participate in the tHR(CZZEZ—F LR)EFEF - WE
management of the day-to-day operation of the operating entities within (ZZ—F MRB)EFRAEENRE -
Beiguo. $§@IT/,\M5§1|:.WM§§WE@E|%

BIE-
(o) At 31 December 2022, the Group's 60% (2021: 60%) owned subsidiary, () RZZE-_ZF+=-A=+—H AEEHE

Ample Sun Group Limited, held direct equity interest of 49% (2021: 49%) in
Future Mall. In addition, 51% (2021: 51%) equity interest of Future Mall was
being directly held by Beiguo. The Group does not participate in the
management of the day-to-day operation of the operating entities within
Future Mall.

A The English name is translated for identification purpose only

FRPEREARRAF —F-_FF§

60% (ZZT=—1F : 60%) s 2 BB A EE
REBBARRAIFEERTES9% (=
Z—F 1 49%) ERERAER o AN - KR
B551% (=T =—4F : 51%) RAE B
HEERE ALETTLEERERTE
HNEEERNATEE-

RXERERME  EHRHD

125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 202 BlZE — T —_—_F+_A=+—HILFE

17

126

Investments in associates (continued)
The financial information in respect of the Group's associates is set

17 RBEQXFNRE (FH)

BRAAREEBRENRZHMBERDT

out below:
2022 2021
—=-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBFIT
Total assets BEfA 13,690,550 13,782,351
Total liabilities BB 8,131,627 8,559,971
Net assets EEFE 5,558,923 5,222,380
Group's share of associates’ net assets REEEEBEAREEFE 3,272,654 3,095,104
Revenue WA 7,662,538 7,608,492
Profit and total comprehensive income for 2N & i Fl) & 2 T W 2 42 B8
the year 353,490 454,157
Group's share of profit and total REEREBERRAFE
comprehensive income of associates i N & 2 s 4R R
for the year 182,205 237,251
Summarised financial information of material associates ERABE AR BEERNBRE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material
associate is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with uniform accounting policies
in conformity with those adopted by the Group.

Beiren Group is the only material associate to the Group and it is
accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated
financial statements. The Group's equity interests in the Beiren
Group are held via certain partially owned subsidiaries of the Group.

Beiren Group

The principal activities of the Beiren Group are the operation of
department stores and supermarkets in the PRC. It was also
engaged in auto trading business and sales were made to three PRC
companies (“the Debtors”) in prior years. The ultimate beneficial
owner of the Debtors has provided personal guarantees over the
Debtors’ outstanding amounts owing to the Beiren Group (the
“"Guarantor”). During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Debtors defaulted on settlement of trade balances due to the
Beiren Group (“Trade Receivables”) and the Beiren Group has
ceased trading with the Debtors and the entire auto trading
business since July 2019. Legal actions have been taken by the
Beiren Group to recover the outstanding Trade Receivables.

BEAASEEARERT 2MBENBE
BT - LTI BERBRESRBE R
BlzMBHMREIN 22 BRREANE
BB SRR RS -

TAEBRREEE -—SAHNBEQT -
ERAEDENGEAMBREAR - K&
BRI ASBHERTEBE T RSB
BRI RN B R BRE ©

HANEEF

IAEBEEERAERFRELETEER
BH TRBEBFEREAEESE
%o wA=HFEAR ([EHALDETH
E-BERAZEREBEBADREBA
REZEIAEEZ FERBEAER(E
RAD - HE-ZE—HhhF+=-A=+—8
EFE BEBARBEEXRFTIEAZEEZ
B ([BWEREDWEAZELD LA
EEE-ZT-NFLtARBREFELETHEBA
MRS REEIEESHER - LAKEE
ERERITENB N Z AR EERNEKERIE -
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FRPEREARRAF

Investments in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(continued)

Beiren Group (continued)

Meanwhile, the Group became aware from public sources that the
Guarantor has been detained by the relevant local authority in
Hebei province in relation to alleged illegal activities in one of his
businesses. Based on public notices issued by the local authority in
Hebei, the Group noted that all companies (including the Debtors)
and assets which are located in Hebei Province that are directly or
indirectly owned by the Guarantor have been seized by the local
authority pending further investigations.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, after obtaining an
understanding from management of the Beiren Group in respect of
the actions taken to recover the Trade Receivables from the Debtors
and taking into consideration advice from the Group's external legal
advisers, the Group had concluded the likelihood of recovering any
amount from the Debtors or the Guarantor as remote and made a
loss allowance of expected credit loss, net of deferred tax credit,
against the full amount of overdue Trade Receivables due from the
Debtors (“Full Impairment”) for the purpose of recognising the
share of results of the Beiren Group as at 31 December 2019.

The impact of this Full Impairment on the Group's share of losses of
associates, loss attributable to owners and loss attributable to
non-controlling interests for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0
million respectively, while its impact on the Group's carrying value of
the investments in associates, equity attributable to owners of the
Company and the non- controlling interests as at that date
amounted to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0
million respectively.

To date, the Group understood from management of the Beiren
Group that there has not been any progress made regarding their
legal actions taken against the Debtors as the criminal case against
the Guarantor taken by the relevant authority is still pending.
Management of the Beiren Group has been maintaining regular
contact with the relevant local authority regularly to follow up the
development of the case against the Debtors, however, there has
not been any concrete reply from the authority. The Guarantor was
still being detained by the relevant local authority and there has
been no additional information or development in relation to the
recoverability of the Trade Receivables due from the Debtors. As
such, there has not been any progress made in terms of recovering
the outstanding trade receivables nor able to obtain any further
financial information of the Debtors and the Guarantor. As at
31 December 2022, the Group considered that the Full Impairment
remained the best estimate based on the information currently
available.

TEROCFER

17

REEQTNERE (K)
EAME AR Z M EREE (H)

IAEE (&)

R AEBERARRBEAERARYS
WMEELZEMEP—EAXBHPREIREE
BmsoitE BRE RE - RiIFAIEAE
*%ﬁ%mﬂi'$%lﬂ SHEERAEN
HEEHERSIREEAENZ AR (BEED
AJ&%%%E%W%%@?%E%W&-
FERE -

RBE-_F-NAF+_A=+t—BLF
- %T%ﬁA%l EEHEEBAR
Ol W AR RN ITE  TEERAKE
SMERERERMNEBERE  ARERARE
BARERAMBFIRA AT EIERE &
RN _T-AFt+t-_A=1+—HEMHIL
AEBZEE  ARBERIERKEEA
BHENREEE B EER R RS
1ERE (HRREERRES) ([2FRME]) -

PHEREHAREHEEZE T —NLF+=A
“t+—HILEFEREBERARGE #E5
Aﬁﬁ%%&#%&%‘ﬁm%%m%@
DRIBARESI24BE T ARME487.4
BETRAREIICSOEET  MAHARE
lm&agﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ ¥iN
NEVHEE NERRERS A R IEE R 5
ZoRAANREI24R 8T - ARE487 4
BEILTMARKIZB0OEET

BEAR AKEBLASEEEERS
A BRARERYHERANMELFD
EFERIED AR AREHEBAELETZ
FERITHRATAER - LAKEEHEE
—ERBREBBARGZBERTHEEMH

ERRIEERE EREIERTMNELZD
B BRADWARLTT #FINE - s

Yo 5 75 A B Mk B TR 9 mT K [ 14 U T I AR R
SNEM S ERER - FL > pHEREE
M BR KR ERIT B A R IER AT —
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Investments in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(continued)

Beiren Group (continued)

The Group only holds a non-controlling interest in the Beiren Group
and therefore does not participate in the management and decision
making of the day to day operation and business of the operating
entities within the Beiren Group which are managed by
management of the Beiren Group. Therefore, the Group is not in a
position (i) to come up with any concrete timetable or any alternative
approach, other than relying on management of the Beiren Group,
for addressing the Qualified Opinion and (i) to conclude whether
there will be any carry forward effect on the Group's financial results
for the coming years ending, which will very much depend on future
development of the situation as mentioned above.

The Company will continue, wherever possible and practicable, to
implement the measures and/or actions to monitor the
development of the situation, including but not limited to regular
communication with the major shareholder of the Beiren Group and
the designation of the Group’s Chief Financial Officer to work
closely with management of the Beiren Group. The Group will also
communicate with the major shareholder of the Beiren Group, which
holds 51% equity interest in the Beiren Group at the holding
company level, to explore and consider different options to
minimize any loss and damage to both of us as shareholders of the
Beiren Group.

17 RBEQXFANRE (FE)

EABERTA2MBENEE (&)

I AEE (F)
ERAEEERFILASEZ IFERE
@ B T2 ERIt AREEREER
EAEB TREZEEERAFEENRBZ
B RORE - Bt AEEOFRERIEIL A
SEWNERE  RERFRREERIR
HAEMABRERIEMERTE IR
()VRBEEME DU AN EEHERRFEZHOH
BREELEEZEFERER  WHBRA
RELEBURR LIS R R R ER -

ARRBBEEERERATZERT &K
BB R SITBAERERER  BF
BARKEREIEARENEZRREA
SEEEMBRERR  UNRILAEEE
BEZYAE - AEETHSEREZERAR
BE AL AEBS1%RENILALE
TERRETER R RZEETRE
B UBERIETERIEARERREDN
EABRAREE -

2022 2021
—Eg-= —_EF_—
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFTT
Current assets MEEE 6,481,664 6,267,079
Non-current assets IEMBEE 7,196,931 7,503,413
Current liabilities mEas 6,974,552 8,454,786
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 1,154,995 103,784
Net assets BEFE 5,549,048 5,211,922
Net assets attributable to owner BHEABGLEZEEFE 4,666,316 4,439,502
Non-controlling interests JEVE N = 882,732 772,420
2022 2021
:g: - =
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTTT
Revenue WA 7,642,410 7,569,462
Profit and total comprehensive income REEHN N2 H K m a5
for the year 354,070 451,167
The Group's share of profit and REBEELIEAEBARFEERT
other comprehensive income of R Hopth 2 T Wz
Beiren Group for the year 182,494 235,755
Dividend declared from Beiren Group REANILASEBEARERE 2
to the Group during the year IR E 4,655 19,103
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17 Investments in associates (continued)
Summarised financial information of material associates
(continued)
Beiren Group (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

17

REEQXFNRE (&)
BEABEAR 2MBERBME (5)

:ll:/{ﬁﬁ(fg)

#?é-}ﬁm%#&%qﬂﬁﬁwﬁf'%t/\‘il ey

carrying amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Beiren NEIEm o REERE R BEERSE
Group which recognised in the consolidated financial statements: AR
2022 2021
—EB=-= T —F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBT AREBTF T
Net assets of Beiren Group attributable to  # A AEMEIL A LR 2 EE
owners FE 4,666,316 4,439,502
Proportion of the Group's direct REBNIEAEBIRL OB #
ownership interest in Beiren Group BE 2w 49% 49%
2,286,494 2,175,356
Add: Further interest of Beiren Group's hn 7S S B H A B 8 A 7
certain subsidiaries directly held HEFAZIEASEET
by the Group's other subsidiaries M AR — R 981,218 914,517
Carrying amount of the Group's interest ~ ANEBRILAEE#EZE 2
in Beiren Group BRTEE 3,267,712 3,089,873

Information of an associate that is not individually material

BRIFERZBENTESR

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F ARBTTT
The Group's share of (loss)/profit and RNEBEEN (E18), & F
other comprehensive (expense)/ REMEE (%) MW
income (289) 1,496
Carrying amount of the Group's interest N5 B A 52 B & A Al =
in this associate ZREE 4,942 5,231
18 Investment in a joint venture 18 R—RBeELENRE

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had interest in the

NoE-——FR-—E-—F+=-f=+—

following joint venture:

Proportion of

B RAREEBSETHAE0E XN

Place of nominal value of
establis} t/ d capital held Proportion of
Name of entity Form of business structure operation by the Group voting power held Principal activities
FEBERFCRT
ERAE EREBER R/ SEhs  RAEELH FsREELS FEEH
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza  Sino-foreign equity joint venture PRC 50% 50% Property holding and leasing
Co., Ltd.A
FENARTESERLAR HIHIGERERHE FE 50% 50% MEBBREE
A The English name is translated for identification purpose only N EVEBERTE  EHE5
FIRPEKEARLE —ZT-_FFRH 129
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Investment in a joint venture (continued)

18 R—EEELENRE (B)

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of BELERESSHAEANR
accounting:
2022 2021
—g=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Cost of unlisted investment in a —HEEREIFELIMRE
joint venture Z R 372,082 372,082
Share of post-acquisition losses and FEAE U B 12 2 B 1R S E A 2 T
other comprehensive expenses, X - MRS
net of dividends (12,025) (37)
360,057 372,045
The summarised financial information related to the Group's interest ERAEERAELE R MBER
in the joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial BT o LT B ERBMZE ARG AR
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s VBB EREN 2 &5 BRIRBEASE
financial statements prepared in accordance with uniform BB ECRRE -
accounting policies in conformity with those adopted by the Group.
2022 2021
-2 —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Non-current assets FERMBEE 818,771 872,017
Current assets MEEE 115,682 105,811
Current liabilities nEB IR 214,339 233,739
Net assets BEFE 720,114 744,089
The above amounts of assets and FMEENEESERFENT
liabilities include the followings: HE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 92,264 51,057
Current financial liabilities 7/\L§b MaE (T eEEN
(excluding trade and other payables) TN H A A5 FRIR) 184,756 210,865
2022 2021
=ZE-C —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBTT
Revenue A 169,119 199,799
Profit for the year A [ )i A 38,234 56,599
Dividend income recognised by the FRAEEEERZREKA
Group during the year 31,105 27,424
The Group's share of profit and REBELHEERERN R
other comprehensive income Hfth 2 Wz
of the joint venture 19,117 28,300
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Investment in a joint venture (continued) 18
The above profit and other comprehensive income for the year

R—EEELRNIRE (F)
B EAEERF R E A R E M BITAT

includes the following: EA

2022 2021

g —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥F ARBFT

Depreciation and amortization YTE N Y 37,193 37,191

Interest income T B2 WA 1,378 1,451

Interest expense FEEH 7,052 8,131

Income tax expense i8R i 17,048 22,761
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the B RS B R R W HmERPHER

carrying amount of the investment in a joint venture recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

R—EABELEMNKREZIRAEHK

2022 2021
—E-= —_EF_—
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Net assets of the joint venture EBEGTECEETFE 720,114 744,089
Proportion of the Group's ownership REE R EER L
interest 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's TEBREGERLENREZ
investment in a joint venture BRmEE 360,057 372,045
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 19 EEZEBBEBEE (EE)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

NTREEHREBEASAMBREENZ D

financial reporting purposes: T
2022 2021
—=E=-= —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Deferred tax assets RILFRIEE E 5,298 5,045
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE (54,367) (48,085)
(49,069) (43,040)

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH
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19 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)
The followings are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

132

19

BEBEEE/(BE)(H)
UTAE#RZ EBREREAE LA E
SRR F R EE) -

Distributable
profits of PRC
subsidiaries,
associates  Accelerated
and a joint tax
venture  depreciation Tax losses Others Total
H 0 s
NE - BE
REKR—H
CELEY
AZBEER MERERE BEER Hity gt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETFT AREF T AREFT ARETT ARBFT
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—%F (31,220 9,564 — (6,208) (27,864)
—HA—H
(Charged)/credited to AEz () (12,038) (4,589) 4,000 (2,549 (15,176)
profit or loss (note 9) = A (M EE9)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F (43,258) 4,975 4,000 (8,757) (43,040)
+=—B=+—8~
(Charged)/credited to RiEzE (k) (7,700) 254 — 1,417 (6,029)
profit or loss (note 9) = AC(KHEE9)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZEBE-—F (50,958) 5,229 4,000 (7,340) (49,069)
+=-A=+—H
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax at the rate ranging from 5% to BBRCEMERE BZEZNF—A—

10% is imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation of RMB7,700,000 (2021: RMB12,038,000)
in respect of distributable profit of the PRC entities amounting of
RMB279,773,000 (2021: RMB407,596,000) has been provided during
the year ended 31 December 2022. At the end of the reporting
period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was RMB949,026,000 (2021:
RMB916,362,000). No liability has been recognised in respect of
these differences because the Group is in a position to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

BRERFBEMEAR  BEAEL—ME
R ﬁﬂZ%%ﬁﬁM%ﬁ?%¢
10%ENH - NEE_Z __¢+ A
—t+—BHIEFE SR EEFEAS KR
AR#279,773,0007c (ZE = —F : AR
407,596,0007T) 2 £ £ A K #7,700,0007T
(ZZ=—%: AR#12,038,0007T) #ELE
TMIBRE RREBR BB RARRS
EZHEFEENEREZRELERRAR
EFIEBE - B8 A ARME49,026,0007T
(ZZ2=—F : AR¥916,362,0007T) ° 3t
NEZELERATMNEE  AALEE
BREANEH G EZBRONER kE
BEERAETSEAELNERER -
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19 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued) 19 EEHRBEEE (AE)(E)

FRPEREARRAF

At 31 December 2022, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB816,111,000 (2021: RMB651,728,000) available for
offset against future profits. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group reviewed previously unrecognised tax losses and
determined that it was probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. As a consequence, a
deferred tax asset of RMB4,000,000 was recognised for these losses.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, deferred tax asset of
RMB4,000,000 was maintained for tax losses because the Group
reviewed the profit forecasts of relevant entity and determined that
it was probable that taxable profits will be available and the tax

R-E-_—_F+-fF=+—H AEEA
REAMIBEELD A ARES16,111,0007T
—T-—F: AR¥651,728,0007T) * A
BEREBREN HE-_T_—F+=
A=Z+—HIEFE  AEEHEMBERE
RMIEEE  WET AT ANER
Fiom FAK SRR TS 18 - it - RS E18
TERIEIET 18 & & A R ¥4,000,0007T © &
EZT_—_F+A=F+—HLFE #
HEBEREHEBSECHBEBEEARE
4,000,0007C ° EIE$%l%ﬁmﬁaﬁ

losses can be utilised. The unrecognised tax losses arising from B0 F FEOR - I 75 5E AT REAT 1R B SR T Uk A
subsidiaries operated in the PRC will expire as follows: BRI EABIEESE - E':F‘ B 4 & B BT B
AIEENARERTIABES SR TIFH
Elp
Tax losses expiring in HEBEINHRZ2FEH
2022 2021
—g=-= T —F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFTT
2022 T =F — 115,106
2023 —E=F 127,709 127,754
2024 777@¢ 100,719 100,719
2025 —E-hE 100,894 100,932
2026 —EDRE 207,217 207,217
2027 —T-LF 279,572 —
816,111 651,728

During the year ended 31 December 2022, approximately
RMB115,106,000 (2021: RMB144,970,000 tax losses expired.

TEROCFER

HE_Z-_—_+-_A=+—H8HLFE"
AAREE115,106,0007T (ZEBE-—4F: AR
#5144,970,0007T) BT IB B IE 2 2 8 -

133



20 Trade and other receivables

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 202 BlZE — T —_—_F+_A=+—HILFE

20 EBWERRREAEWRRE

2022 2021
—=-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R ARBETF T
Trade receivables JE UL BR 7K 25,929 64,272
Lease receivables T2 & E W8 74,862 45,968
100,791 110,240
Less: Loss allowance on expected credit & : ATEHIEEEIE

losses 2 EERE (2,657) (495)
98,134 109,745
Prepayments FERTFRIE 257 226
Deposits paid [=ANE & 5,352 5,349
Value Added Tax ("VAT") receivable FEUEER ([HEER]) 88,457 144,929
Others EHh 46,783 52,742
140,849 203,246

Less: Loss allowance on expected credit &, : THEA{E EESE 2 BERE
losses (22,253) (22,253)
118,596 180,993
216,730 290,738
Less: Non-current portion B EmENE Y (5,352) (5,349)
211,378 285,389

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash and

through debit card or third-party payment platform. Its major trade

receivables arising from third-party payment platform sales are

normally settled in one to two business days and lease receivables

are normally settled 30 days in arrears. The following is an aged

analysis of trade and lease receivables net of allowance for expected

credit losses, if any, at the end of the reporting period presented

based on invoice date:

AEERABEEHNTEHETREBER
EMERRRE=ZTIHFEET - A%
ErX2REETRE RN —EMETIE
BRI E =TT 5RFEHE R —RR30
AP B THE BUYGRIE AT AU R
FREERYFOR (HIR R EREERRE
(B RERENREZAHZRED
#r

2022 2021
—E=-= B
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARWEFTT
0-30 days OHZ30H 56,742 108,232
31-60 days 31THZ60H 20,944 1,133
61-90 days 61HZE90H 6,696 99
over 90 days BiE90H 13,752 281
98,134 109,745
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21

22

20 Trade and other receivables (continued) 20 FEWERF KR H bW RRIE (&)
Movement in the provision for expected credit loss on trade EWRSEAHEEBREEZY
receivables

2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFTT
At 1 January m—H—H 495 723
Provision/(reversal of provision) for DHRERBHREEBEEE,
expected credit loss recognised (BB ) 2,162 (228)
At 31 December Nt —-_A=+—H 2,657 495
The fair value of the trade and other receivables approximates to FELBZEE R % E At P UGB A A B A AR
their carrying values. EiEE
Inventories 21 FE&
2022 2021
—=E=-= —ZT-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARBTF T
Merchandise held for resale FEFEEN R 109,471 102,073
Amount due to a joint venture 22 EN—MEELERIE

23

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the amount due to a joint venture
represented accrued rental and management fee payable to a joint
venture. The amount was unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

Amount due from associates 23
At 31 December 2022 and 2021 the amount due from associates
represented dividend receivables from Beiren Group and Beiguo as

well as a loan receivable from Beiguo, which was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH

RZTE_—_FR-_FT—

B EBN—HAELEZE

—Ff=A=t—
108 @ R

N—MEeELEZHENERE - A
BERT RERBAREREFEE -

& Wi B

SR ¢ PN
B ) B W A B

YNEIES$:z]
F_$::¢&_§:

—FF=A=t—
SUB T A 2 A R It
LA&‘JI:IE’JFELBU%/TA HA

BRI R B RANEREERE -
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24

25

136

Cash and cash equivalents 24 ReRBRELEEY
At 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents comprised mainly RZTE-_—_F+-_A=+—H BELEE
short-term deposits with original maturity within three months and SEBYEFERERRITMHMNEGE (F
carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.75% to 5.85% FIENT075EES85E) (T _—F : F
per annum (2021: 0.15% to 4.13% per annum). FMENFOISEZRL41ZE)NEETR=(EA
WEIH 2 %2 BifE 3K
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following ReRBLFBWUATIEEGFHE
currencies:
2022 2021
—=-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETTT
RMB AR 1,490,300 1,770,586
US Dollars ("US$") Erx(=Ex) 86,101 78,294
Hong Kong Dollars (“"HK$") B (BT 32,696 9,318
1,609,097 1,858,198
Trade and other payables 25 ENERRHEMESRKIE
2022 2021
—Eg-= —_EF_—
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTFTT
Trade payables JE SRR R 47,548 61,244
Construction payables FER T2 FRIE 252,516 429,831
Concessionaire sales payables FEN R RT BB SH & R 1A 325,970 492,390
Refundable prepaid card deposits AREREN RS 139,191 137,215
Rental deposits received B EZRS 204,819 180,747
Accrued expenses EErtEH 73,417 101,741
VAT payable FERIEETIA 7 9,415
Interest payables FEATRE 2,940 3,147
Others EAh 48,217 46,244
1,094,625 1461974

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables date at the end
of the reporting period presented based on invoice date:

AT BRIESRE HRERHHE RN RR
HRRER DT

2022 2021

:E: - =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R AREFTT
0-30 days 0OH=Z30H 32,825 52,572
31-60 days 31THZE60H 5,898 4,955
61-90 days 61THZE9H 1,800 328
over 90 days BiHE90H 7,025 3,389
47,548 61,244

The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire
sales payables is 45 days from invoice date. The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
paid within the credit timeframe.

FEARR B B FF BB I B A 2 F 19
EEHANERERIEASH - AEER
BEUBRREZRR - BRAAENA
REEEHRAZA
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26 Bank borrowings 26 HRITEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F AREFTT
Bank borrowings comprise bank loans RITEE RIRTTE AR
and are analysed as: WIRA T4
Secured, variable rate and BEMA  FERUAARK
denominated in RMB sHE 2,240,000 2,340,000
Carrying amount repayable based on RAEKNFEEARS B EE
contractual repayment dates: BRMEE
Within one year —FR 1,120,000 100,000
More than one year, but not exceeding —FIRETHBEBME
two years 1,120,000 1,120,000
More than two years, but not MFRETBEB=F
exceeding three years — 1,120,000
2,240,000 2,340,000
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : S| AJRBIBER —F A
under current liabilities B2 /IR (1,120,000) (100,000
Amount due after one year —F1EEIH 2 BE 1,120,000 2,240,000
The effective interest rate of the borrowings was at 4.31%4.41% ERERAERFNEL3N%441% (ZF

(2021: 4.41%—4.46%) per annum.

On 26 December 2022, the Group entered into a new secured loan
agreement in respect of a RMB3,300 million 15-year term loan
facility with a syndicate of banks. The RMB3,300 million facility was
fully drawn down on 6 January 2023 and part of which was used to
repay in full the RMB2,240 million outstanding project loan.

For detail of the pledge of assets, please refer to note 37.

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH

T 4N %4.46%) °

RZEZ—_F+ZA=+/"8 x&EEH
IRE—E AR 00BE TN T+ AFH
,\Ty\mﬂﬁéuTT%ﬁﬁ’lﬁﬁﬁﬂgmﬁ%# ° A
E%B?)OOEF%?E%EQEEA —=F—H
SNEEEIRE ﬁﬁﬁ"i%ﬂﬁ%&ik/\
E%Z,ZZLOE'%fEZ?HE%&IE BEX-

A

BEEMOFE  BF2HME37 -
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27 Lease liabilities 27 HEAE
2022 2021
—=-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 288,928 406,427
Less: b
Lease payments HERRK (114,679) (115,671)
Lease modification BRI E W= — (20,853)
Interest expense HMBMRX 14,158 19,025
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 188,407 288,928
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFTT
Within a year —FR 105,447 100,521
More than one year, but not exceeding ~ —FEZ BT BBAF
five years 82,960 188,407
188,407 288,928
Lease contracts are typically for fixed period of 10-15 years. HEARHN—RRBETFH NFI105F2
154 ©
In 2022, the cash outflow related to principal elements of lease R-ZZZ—F HEEEEsAELRHE
liabilities and finance costs were RMB100,521,000 (2021: KABBENBERE2AABARE
RMB96,646,000) and RMB14,158,000 (2021: RMB19,025,000) 100,521,000 (Z T = —F : AR®
respectively. 96,646,0007T) K AR #514,158,0007T (=&

——1%F : AR¥19,0250007T) °

138 Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B 7 $& 3% M 53(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z — T —_—_F +_A=+—HIFE

28 Contract liabilities 28 BENEE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Loyalty points under loyalty reward B AREN A BT 80 BB R
programmes I %) 8,163 10,971
Unredeemed gift certificates RI 2 1E 55 1,528 1,289
9,691 12,260

Loyalty points under loyalty reward

programmes
BHRBTEATHERRBES
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARBFT
Revenue recognised out of the contract ~ FH & LB EFRER Z WA
liabilities at the beginning of the year 12,260 9,093

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract

liabilities recognised are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Loyalty points under loyalty reward programmes
Under the Group's customer loyalty reward programmes,
customers who participate in the loyalty programmes can earn
reward point in proportion to every dollar of their spending.
For every 5,000 points earned from cosmetic products and
every 10,000 points earned from non-cosmetic products,
customers can redeem gift certificates from basic conversion
rate with face value of RMB250 and RMB50 respectively, which
can be redeemed for goods or services offered at the
department stores. Rewards points earned has an expiry
period of one year.

Unredeemed gift certificates

The Group sells gift certificates to customers who redeem
them for goods and services offered at the department
stores. The gift certificates are non-refundable and valid for
one year from the date of issue.

The Group applied the practical expedient and does not disclose

the information relating to the remaining performance obligations

that have original expected duration of one year or less.

FRPEREARRAF

TEROCFER

HERANABRS BB EN KRN

RGN T
() BHERBTET E’Jiﬁiﬁiﬁﬁlﬁ’ﬁ

(b)

AEEDERER

RAEEZ BREEE T 28
BB ECERIRE — T2
BECEIZLARBES - EERM
{bsth b 2 fb B B EX 895,000 & 3E1E
A S B BRENAY 10,0005 + ATIRE
REgig RIGEEE D Bl A AR 250
TTRAREESOTL €S ATRARA
BREEERBZERIRS - BRI
2N —FHRER -

KA ZEH
rEBHERAFTHEE MEEH
EFH%%#WHXETE?ET ZEmk
ARTS o I RIRHK - WHFEH B H
B—FRER -

ATV IR A - R

FHRBRRTRNFHR—FRAT 2%
TROBEAM AR -
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29

30

31

140

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of 29 EHEBLAT—BFERRRZ
subsidiaries MIE
As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, the amount was unsecured, R FR T - —F+_-_A=+—
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. H  ZFEAEER 2ERANRERK
B -
Share capital 30 BA&
Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital are as follows: RABIRAZ EBFHBNOT :
Number of
shares Amount
ROEE ;IR
HK$'000
FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each FHRE{E0.005/8 JT & & i Ak
Authorised: SETERA
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 R—_ZE_—F—H—A-
and 31 December 2022 TR -F+ZA=+—AK
—E- -+ -A=+—H 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 RN—ZE-_—%F—H—H8 "
and 31 December 2022 ZE—F+ZA=+—AHAK
—E-_—_F+-A=+—H 1,464,448,500 7,322
RMB’000
AREFTT
Shown in the financial statements as RMB RITE_—FRZZT__F+-A
at 31 December 2021 and 2022 =+ BRPFBHERENAREZ7 6,291

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during both years.

Statutory surplus reserve and capital reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax profits as
reflected in the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation, provided that
such reserve fund is maintained a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital.

The capital reserve represented deemed contribution from Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle International”), a former
holding company of the Company in prior years, that certain loan
interest payables were waived by Lifestyle International and not
recharged to the Company and its subsidiaries prior to the listing of
the Company in 2016.

31

PRREFE - AR R SKE AN E R A
EBBE - BENEEARDRMER LTS %

EEBBRLOBRERENHE
RIER BN R A RN IBRER AR
R+ ARDF R BB A AA R R B
BRSNS HR R R A BRI
A2 10% 8B R ERB AT Aai%
R B A AN 150% < FEBHD
ST BEBHBEFENBRMAE)
ﬂ@@ﬁ$k%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ$'mﬁ%%
SEHSRERFEEMERN25% L «

EARBRANBEFENGEREREGR
REN([FEER D (KRR E ZATZERAR)
ZREEE - BE T RNERNSERE
BER#L  URARBAR_FT—RFLT
MY EEETARERENERR
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32 Leases 32 HE
The Group as lessee KEBERABEA
The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for all leases except REBEDHRAMEHENERREEE
for short-term and low-value leases. EE AR EBEHEER
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREFTT
Minimum lease payments paid for short-  FtEEH REEBEHEEDT
term and low-value leases Z KRB ERKIE
Leasehold land and buildings HE T REF 1,030 513
Other assets HEf&EE 681 428
1,711 941
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group incurred BE_Z__F+_A=+—HILFE
RMB 14,495,000 (2021: RMB47,275,000) contingent rents which was AEBIZHEETADLI NS AEE A
based on certain percentage of sales. AREE14,495000 L (ZFEZ—F : AR
47,275,0007T) °
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for REERR  REERTAIHEEEHEE
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating ZAEREKEEERE(RREFEM
leases (fixed rent only) which fall due as follows: )R Y FHEIE
2022 2021
—ZE=-= —ZT-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBT T
Within one year —iﬁq 1,302 990
In the second to fifth year inclusive EhF (BEEERSF) 1,717 2,192
3,019 3,182
The above commitments represent commitments for leasing FatEEAREETYWEREAERIAN
residential properties amounting to RMB2,261,000 (2021: ARBE2261000c(ZE=-—F: AR
RMB2,644,000) and other assets amounting to RMB758,000 (2021: 2,644,0007T) & E‘fﬁ HmEEZFTARE
RMB538,000). 758,0007T (= F=—4 : A 538,0007T)
WS -
Lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for HMERBEASERCHREEEREDT
short-term and low-value leases of residential properties and other EMEREMERE BIER) BN 2ES -
assets which represented machineries. Rental payables are MENzESABEEEE TN S KT
predetermined at fixed amounts except for certain lease of which —LRBRIHEEE T B O s AR
contingent rental are charged based on certain percentage of sales. SRR - BH—RIREEH—ZF=F (=
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to T —F: *Z:_E) Tﬁf’)?ﬁ HeBERT
three years (2021: one year to three years) and rentals are fixed for —E=F(ZF_—F: —E=F)EE
terms ranging from one year to three years (2021: one year to three
years).
HRPEEMERAE —S-—FFH 141
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32

33

34

142

Leases (continued) 32 #HE (#|E)
The Group as lessor FEEHEZHBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with RMERR AEEDHEBEPTANAR
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: =EBEFBEWOT :
2022 2021
—E_C T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Within one year —F R 238,756 195,070
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EERAF(BIEHEMF) 466,511 605,694
Over five years BiBAF 67,880 33,580
773,147 834,344

Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to
eight years.

HAO—RZEEMH—ZEN\FiHHE -

Capital and other commitments 33 BEXRKHMAKAIE
2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTIT
Capital and other expenditure in respect B a] #)MERRLRA B TR EK
of acquisition of property, plant and BEZEEBEADE  BER
equipment and property development BRI EERIER
project contracted for but not provided ~ Z & AR E M
in the consolidated financial statements 413 260

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.
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35 Financial instruments 35 €T A
Categories of financial instruments SRIAER
2022 2021
—E=-C T —%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFTT
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets measured at BREERATEC SREE
amortised cost (including cash and (BREReLREFED)
cash equivalents) 1,846,107 2,114,646
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities measured at BEBENATEZECREE
amortised cost 3,561,747 4,155,364
Financial risk management objectives and policies HBEBREEEHRBEE

The Group's major financial instruments include bank balances and
cash, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, amount
due to a joint venture, bank borrowings and amount due from
associates. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Currency risk
The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is RMB, in which most of its transactions are
denominated. The functional currency of the subsidiaries operating
in Hong Kong is HK$, in which most of the transactions are
denominated.

The Group has certain foreign currency denominated bank balances

at the end of each reporting period and details of which are
disclosed in respective notes.

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH

FEBTESRMIABRERITEBRRER
T - FEUBR R R E A R MR IR - R AT BR AR
NEMBENRIE BN —HEERER
T RITEE DA R MR D B RIA - %
EeMTAHBESOMERE - BilLE
fﬁrﬂlﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁZﬂ FORUR S B LR 2 K
ﬁﬁATX ° Efi Akk}%&@L TZER
+ DABER M B BB RO IR BUE B 6 o

Eme
ARBERPEEENHNBRAR 2GR
%ﬁ/\ﬁﬁg BHABD R HAAREE
B-REBLENNBARIZIEEER
BT BERRBORZANEBTLEE -

BEEWMEHR  AKEEE TIEHE
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Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of US$ and HKS$. The
carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated

35

£RMIEA (&)

@ T AEER (&)

EHm b (&)

AEEXZEHETRETHBEER

B o G TR EIK -

AEBUINEHER

monetary assets at the end of each reporting period are as follows: WMEEREENT :
2022 2021
—=-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT

Assets BE

uss$ ey 86,101 78,294
HK$ BT 32,696 9,318

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change of 5% (2021: 5%) in exchange rate of US$ and HK$
against RMB, while all other variables are held constant. 5% (2021:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to the key management personnel and represents the
management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of each reporting period for a 5%
(2021: 5%) change in foreign currency rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit for the year where RMB weakens
against the relevant foreign currency. Where RMB strengthens
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year and the amounts below
would be negative.

ZIK%EEE%]TE%M%T?#B{% AR E

BESEHEINERR
MEAS AR -

TRANEAEBRETRABTHLARKEZ

B %< AT B 3R 5%

£ 8) 1 F 5 2 o 5

TE - —F:5%) A8
N 2 UK

B o5%(ZZE-—F :5%) RETEEERAR
NEBERINERBRAAA 2 BEE > U RE
BEHIMEE R LR IB B 27T - 8
BREDITEBBRARABINEINEEE R

B YR EHmERRLS(—T - —
5%) IMNETE RSB EME - ARKR
BRSNS T BITRMIZEBERTF

PUEFIE - MARBZBRES L7
AleHFNENEERSFERR 2FE
BTRAIBFEREHE -

2022 2021
—E-_Z T4

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT

US$ against RMB ETHARYKE 3,229 2,936
HK$ against RMB BT HARE 1,226 349

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

ERERR > ANFHEB 2 E R

£ REBR
LB o

C URE 3 AT I AR E B S
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35

Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits (2021: fixed-rate bank deposit). The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating to the Group's
variable-rate bank borrowings (2021: variable-rate bank borrowings).
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings (excluding the specific bank borrowings for construction
purpose) at the end of the reporting period and the reasonably
possible change taking place at the beginning of each year and held
constant throughout the year. A 50 basis points (2021: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease is used for variable-rate balances when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The Group’s sensitivity to interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period while all other variables
were held constant after taking into account the impact of the tax
and finance costs capitalised in construction in progress and
properties under development are as follows:

35 SR IT A&

@I EER (F)

FIF 7 B2
AEBEHHEBETEMERBIERZAFE
FERR(ZEZ—F: BEMRRTE
;) AEESEHRSRENERR - T)
ERAEEFHNERRTER(ZZ=—
FOFBFERRITER - $Elfﬁﬁﬂf4ﬁ
ETT?T‘H%T/EPB@E Aim - BIEEGER
) & & EERE E R E AR R
ﬂuuo

AEBUBESRENERR ZHRE - 5
RIBFRREARRITEE (TRIESTRT
BEERERR) FXRAR UEREFF
AR B L ENESET  TRE2FH
BIE BEREEEE ABRNIBERFE
B SOREEH(ZT=—4F: wmﬁ
2h) Nk ARIZ B 1&%
EgﬂfT%aﬁ rrrrrr AE) R RT (S o %ﬁﬁ
MBI KEERERRERT
&&%F#%%§$kﬂ£%$m?m
% AEERSREHRY T ERB R
JEUNNE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-HLEE

2022 2021
—E-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARET T
(Decrease)/increase in post-tax profit & RBRHBHEF GR4), /&0
for the year
— as a result of increase in interest rate — BARFE EF (8,400) (731)
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — HARFIR T 8,400 731
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B/ b R B

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2022 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH

i T**EJr RA=+—8 Xx&%Ez

HFFREBTHEEMREESIDHER
@Eﬂﬁféﬁ%zﬂ%%%%ﬁtl& Ema Y

BRRKRAAZEEEZREE °
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Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has formulated a defined
fixed credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group's retail sales are mainly on cash basis,
either in cash, debit card or third-party payment platform. The
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade receivable balances individually or
based on provision matrix.

For the credit-impaired trade receivables, a impairment loss of
RMB2,162,000 (2021: an reversal of impairment loss of RMB228,000)
was made during the year ended 31 December 2022. The following
table shows the movement in loss allowance that has been
recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

35

£RIA (&)
ST AER (&)
EEEB R HEFE ()
EW%%

EREEERKR  AEEDHTHE
mlmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ—@Aé HEE
FREERE HEREEERETHMES
2R LR RESBANIES 2B
ET AEETEHETERBLE
#UBRS  RERRE-SNRTLE
T AEERERE SN HREENBOR
% BIEFEHESEBER  YEKER
R B B T RE SR - A B IERE
E RS ITRE A o

REERERKEZRME  EREHEZ
T CF+-RAR=+—HIFEERARKE
2,162,000t 2 BEEE (ZZE=—F : AR
#228,0007C 2 R EEIERR) - RERZ7
RIEAC L7 T\ Bk FE U BR TR SR 2 IS 1B

Life-time ECL
(credit Impaired)
EHEBEERE
(BEEERE)
RMB’000
ARETTT
As at 1 January 2021 under HKFRS 9 RZT_—F—HA—H
RIEE BB EERIFE R 723
— change in expected credit losses — EHEEEEEZS (228)
As at 31 December 2021 R-F_—F+-A=+—~H 495
— change in expected credit losses —EHEEEERY 2,162
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_+—-_A=+—H 2,657
Other receivables H it JE WA IE
As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group performs ERARE . EERERER 2 —& M KN&E

impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9. The Group assessed the 12-month ECL for other
receivables individually as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 and
considered that impairment allowance on other receivables (not
credit impaired) to be insignificant and thus negligible to be
provided by the Group based on the low probability of default on
those counterparties based on historical credit loss experience. The
management has also assessed all available forward looking
information, including but not limited to the economic outlook of
the PRC and subsequent settlement of the debtors, and concluded
that the credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding other
receivables is insignificant.

IEE(‘%FHE/%EM%%E%E,@'J%%E% iR
ERAEEERRIETRENE - A%

ESR 2 —FR_T_—F+_A
=t—BzHEMEEFIE @R 12(E

REHEERBE - YRAEMERFIE (X
BEERE) QBERBLTEK - thTHE
RELEEBERER  ZFHTHENA
BEUEAK At AEERBZBREES
BYFEX - BEENCHEMBEAGZ
AIREMEE R - BRETRRHEZEEA
ROUREBARRZEN  URBAE
BREEZ EMERREREAR ZEERR
WAREKX e
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35

FRPEREARRAF

Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Time deposits and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with credit ratings of B or above assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. For the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, the Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of defaults of the
counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance
for credit losses is provided.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation
to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of the amounts
due from associates. The Group monitors the credibility of
associates continuously. After taking into account of their financial
position, past experience and other factors, the Group considers the
risks associated with amounts due from associates are minimal.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. Details of bank borrowings are set out in note 26.

Based on the above, the management of the Company considers
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk and it will be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

TEROCFER
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35 Financial instruments (continued) 35 €®MIA(E)
Categories of financial instruments (continued) SR T RER (#&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELERE (&)

In addition, the following table details the Group’s remaining BN TRANAEBIETESRBER
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The TEHEHE - TRIVERAEETEE
ERBHR2HFHE NemBE IR
BB EMEAERY - TREHIFER

tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash
flows of financial liabilities based on earliest date on which the

Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and reREME :
principal cash flows:
Weighted
average
effective  On demand/ Total
interest less than 1to 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 month 3 months 1year 1to5years  cashflows amount
mEFY RER/-f@ FERRER
ik Ab\m  -E=fif ZEAZE-% —-Z5F EAH EHE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARBTRT ARETR
31 December 2022 “E--_F+-A=1+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTESBEE
Trade and other payables e R R AN IR — 1,094,618 — — — 1,094,618 1,094,618
Amount due to a non-controlling eI B R R — R EERBR
shareholder of subsidiaries A — 26,142 — — — 26,142 26,142
Bank borrowings — variable rate RITHE — FBF% 4.31-4.41 - 24,358 43,032 2,296,158 2,363,548 2,240,000
Amount due to a joint venture ER—FaELERE — 12,580 — — — 12,580 12,580
Lease liabilities HERRE 490 9,557 19,113 86,009 86,009 200,688 188,407
1,142,897 43471 129,041 2,382,167 3,697,576 3,561,741
31 December 2021 “Bo-%t-A=t-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTELRBE
Trade and other payables FE AT BR 0% B A B 9 SR8 - 1,452,559 - - - 1,452,559 1,452,559
Amount due to a non-controlling ERMEAR—BHFERER
shareholder of subsidiaries 2B — 26,142 — — — 26,142 26,142
Bank borrowings — variable rate BIRE—FPAE 4.41-4.46 — 25,445 182,185 2,336,236 2,543,866 2,340,000
Amount due to a joint venture ER—FHAELERE — 47,735 — — — 47,735 47735
Lease liabilties HEAE 490 9,557 19,113 86,009 200,688 315,367 288,928
1,535,993 44,558 268,194 2,536,924 4,385,669 4,155,364

147 B9 S 2 B SR o AR A 2
fEEER . EXRIFTECBAMZEH
FETBBEL SHEALHRES -

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

EBMITAEZAFETE
RIEBE-—_F+-F=+—HB &XRFE
BERBREE VB HRE PR HK AT
ENcRMEENSRABNERGBERER
DFERE -

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
As at 31 December 2022, the management of the Company
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial

liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.
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36 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 36 HBEEBELNEBEYHER

activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRAVNAEEREMEETDHEENEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 28 AERSRIEREH HMEITH
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash EXNEESEDANEAEEGER S
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the Group's MEBXRFIELAMETH I REMNE °

consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities.

Amount due to a

non-controlling

Bank Interest Lease shareholder of
borrowings payables liabilities subsidiaries Total
EAHEAR

RITEE EAFIE HESE HFERRRME bl

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT

At 1 January 2021 RZE-Z—F—F—H 2,400,000 3,228 406,427 26,142 2,835,797

Capitalised borrowing cost EREHBERE — 97,003 — — 97,003

Interests on lease liabilities HEAEFS — — 19,025 — 19,025

Lease modification CEEE - - (20,853) — (20,853)

Financing cash outflow BMEEERE RN (60,000) (97,053) (115,671) — (272,724)

At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F

+-A=1+—H 2,340,000 3,178 288,928 26,142 2,658,248

At 1 January 2022 W-E-—#—H—H 2,340,000 3,178 288,928 26,142 2,658,248

Interest on bank borrowing RITEEFE — 101,495 — — 101,495

Interests on lease liability HEAEFS — — 14,158 — 14,158

Financing cash outflow BMEEERE RN (100,000) (101,733) (114,679) — (316,412)

At 31 December 2022 i 3
+-A=1+—8H 2,240,000 2,940 188,407 26,142 2,457,489
37 Pledge of assets 37 EEEH

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's (i) property, plant RZEZZF+ZA=+—0 A£EE
and equipment in the PRC with a book value of approximately EHEETOURPRZYE  BE &R
RMB3,786 million (2021: RMB3,936 million) and (ii) right-of-use assets H EEEAENAARE3786EET(Z
in the PRC with a book value of approximately RMB1,620 million T —F: AREEI6EETT) ; (LR
(2021: RMB1,671 million); and (iii) investment property in the PRC FREZEREEE  RMEEOAARE
with a book value of RMB1,262 million (31 December 2021: 1,208 (ZE=—F : ARK1,671H
RMB1,292 million) were pledged to secure bank loan facilities of Br)  RONEIAFRBEZIEEE - BREE
approximately RMB2,240 million (2021: RMB2,340 million). BRARB1I2EET(ZE_—F+=

A=+—8: ARBI12VEET)IEAE
RIBTEFREOARB22408E 7T (=
T —F: AR¥23408ET) °
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150

Related party disclosure 38
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related
parties:

BAEALRE

B

RARBMREMBOWEIN K&
HEEATETURTIORS

(a) Transactions (@ X3
During the year, the Group had entered into the following FR - REEE T EATET
significant transactions with the following related parties. THEKRRZS ©
2022 2021
—s—— —T——
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETTT
Nature of related party BEALTRSHME :
transactions:
Variable lease payment expenses X T —H&EERE A&
and management fee to a joint HENFHEINERESE
venture 51,061 80,732
Repayment of lease liabilitiestoa  M—H&EGXEEHEEE
joint venture (including principal (BEAS RNEEHD)
and interest elements) 114,679 114,679
Rental expenses and management K8 —fEiE A FINHES I &
fee from an associate ERE 4,120 5,258
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (by ETEEBASHMH

The remuneration of the executive director, being the key
management personnel, was determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company having regard to the performance
of the individuals and market. Details of which together with
the other four (2021: four) highest paid employees are
disclosed in note 11 above.

MITERERTEEE AR ZF B
EHAARAHME B EREEAMN
MSERAMETE - HHFMER At
ME(CE-—F 1R &RSHE
B2ZFHBE N BB -
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39

FRPEREARRAF

Retirement benefits schemes

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF Scheme”). Both the
Group and the employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
for the MPF ordinance. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local governments in relevant jurisdictions. The Group is
required to contribute and recognise a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligations of the Group with respect to these schemes are to make
the specified contributions and recognise the respective retirement
pay in accordance with terms set out in the schemes and relevant
jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above

mentioned schemes during the year amounted to approximately
RMB9.2 million (2021: RMB8.0 million).

TEROCFER
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40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the details of the Company's
principal subsidiaries are as follows:

40

IEMBEARAFE
R-F-—FER-F
A ARRAZEEMHELR

——HFtZA=+—

ERCEUNNE

(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) MBI —RER
Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share capital/ Attributable
Name of company establishment and operation registered capital equity interest of the Group Principal activities
ARAL/BIR
ARER g% /85 BRARAR/HRRA AREEGRR IREH
2022 01 2022 2021
—E-CE “g--% k- St - “E-F
Ample Sun Group Limited (*Ample Sun”) Hong Kong HK$62,050,000 HK$62,050,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
17 August 2007
#REBARAA(ER)) BE 62,050,000 7 620500007 60% 0% RARR
ZRELENATER
Lifestyle Plaza (Dalian) Co., Limited™** PRC US$45,000,000 15$45,000,000 100% 100%  Dormant
9 October 1993
HEEE(KE)ARAT i 45,000,000%7 4500000050 100% L
—WAZETANE
Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) Co., Limited* PRC RMB1,055,696,400 RMB1,034,493,200 100% 100%  Retaling business
1 March 2007
FliERss (&) R AR HE AR#1,055,696,4007 | AK%1,0344932007 100% 0% FERE
“RELE-R-A
LiYi Da Commercial and Real Estate (Shanghai) PRC PRC RMB2,989,331,164.37 |  RMB2,825,471,617.60 100% 100%  Retailing business and
Company Limited** 23 April 2012 property development
HlREAXER(LE) ARAF i AE#$2989,331,164.3770 |\RH2825471617607C 100% 0% FEXERNEERE
ZE-CEMACTER
Shanghai Li Hai Chao Commercial Company Limited™" ~ PRC RMB15,000,000 RMB15,000,000 100% 100%  Retaling business
31 March 2012
LEHEREEERAT i AR#150000007 | ARE150000007 100% 0% FEXH
“3-"£Zf=1-H
Shanghai Ongoing Department Store Limited* PRC U5$12,000,000 1S§12,000000 65% 65%  Retailing business
("Shanghai Ongoing") 26 July 2004
BEAXBERRAR ([ HEAR) HE 12,000,000% % 12000000570 65% 6% FEXK
ZEEMELAZT
Shenyang Chuk Yuen Company Limited**/ PRC RMB710,090,392 RMB710,090,392 100% 100%  Dormant
1 December 2006
EBERERARAT™ i ARETI0,0003927 | ARHT1009039270 100% 0% B%
“EERETIA-A
Wingold Limited ("Wingold") Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
20 April 2007
ReEROA(HE)) BE 10,0007 1000077 60% 0% RELK
“RRLEMACTH
* a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC. * RARBEKL 2 hIMEERE -
*x wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC. * RAFBIK 2 2INERE -
A The English name is translated for identification purpose only : ENEBERTE  EHH5

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding

at the end of both reporting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z — T —_—_F +_A=+—HIFE

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued)

40 FEMEAAFE (&)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued) (a) HMEBLAAN—RER (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, P RINHESZRAEEZER
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or SEEXBENEECARANMER
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries Al BEERA - REHMMELRE
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of HeE8YFBBE -
excessive length.
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) HEERFERERNIZENS
material non-controlling interests ARINFE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRINTHEEEARFIERERHAE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling SEFZEMBERRNE
interests:
Proportion of ownership interest
Name of Place of incorporation and and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
company principal place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
A 3L 3t B R FERER2AEE
ARER TEEEHY RARRERELH BT FERERHEF Rt FERER
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—B-CF —E-—F —E-CF —E-—F —g-C —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT ARBT T ARBTFT
Wingold Hong Kong 40% 40% 62,440 81,082 1,131,845 1,069,405
e BB
Shanghai PRC 35% 35% 58,684 87,738 112,110 141,658
Ongoing
HBAK g
Ample Sun Hong Kong 40% 40% 9,890 12,362 244,116 234,226
=3z ) 0
131,014 181,182 1,488,071 1,445,289

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH

BRAEEHBEEAIFERER
MEBARHHERREZHIIT -
UNT &I BERBEREEA
RA)EEHERTH SRR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 202 BlZE — T —_—_F+_A=+—HILFE

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 40 FEMWEARFE (&)

154

(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) BEERFERERNIZEMNES
material non-controlling interests (continued) AT WS ()
(i) Wingold (i) #L
2022 2021
—g=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Current assets MEEE 197,118 192,466
Non-current assets ERBNE E 2,663,409 2,511,960
Current liabilities nBBE 4,873 4,873
Non-current liabilities EmEaE 26,042 26,042
Equity attributable to owners RABHE ANEGERD
of the Company 1,697,767 1,604,106
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 1,131,845 1,069,405
Income LN 156,105 202,716
Expenses 53 4 10
Profit and total comprehensive REE &M R 2K
income for the year e 156,101 202,706
Profit and total comprehensive RRBIHEE ANEE RN &
income attributable to owners FTHE AT
of the Company 93,661 121,624
Profit and total comprehensive FE5E IR %5 FE A5 e ) 2
income attributable to the THEHLAE
non-controlling interests 62,440 81,082
Profit and total comprehensive NS R R 2 TE W
income for the year M 156,101 202,706
Net cash inflow from operating KETEMEENES
activities MAHER — —
Net cash inflow from investing SEEEEEMNER S
activities mMAEER — —
Net cash outflow from financing ~ & EBTELENR S
activities R — —
Net cash outflow Wt F5E — —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z — T —_—_F +_A=+—HIFE

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 40 FEMNERATFE (&)
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) HEERFERERNIZENES
material non-controlling interests (continued) NEIM S (E)
(i)  Shanghai Ongoing (i) LERE
2022 2021
—E-C T —%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBET T
Current assets B E 709,665 974,811
Non-current assets ERBEE 200,685 318,989
Current liabilities nBEE 504,028 688,376
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 86,008 200,687
Equity attributable to owners RABIHEAR NEEER
of the Company 208,204 263,079
Non-controlling interests JEVE R AE 112,110 141,658
Income KA 710,916 1,034,236
Expenses 53 543,247 783,557
Profit and total comprehensive REERMNE2E N
income for the year Fk) 167,669 250,679
Profit and total comprehensive RAREA NEERT R
income attributable to owners 2R =R
of the Company 108,985 162,941
Profit and total comprehensive FE1E R 2 A5 s ) K2
income attributable to the 2K R
non-controlling interests 58,684 87,738
Profit and total comprehensive RNEE A K2 E RS
income for the year Fk) 167,669 250,679
Net cash inflow from operating KEEBMEENE S
activities A SFEE 105,740 308,435
Net cash inflow from investing KRELREENEE
activities AR 14,124 17,990
Net cash outflow from financing ~ B EEEFTELEMNIE &
activities R (352,840) (317,695)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow BE R,/ A ERE (232,976) 8,730

FRPEREARRAF

TEROCFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 202 BlZE — T —_—_F+_A=+—HILFE

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 40 FEMWEARFE (&)
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) BEERFERERNIZEMNES

156

material non-controlling interests (continued) AT WS ()
(i) Ample Sun (i) #= R
2022 2021
—s=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFIT
Current assets MEEE 7,467 9,566
Non-current assets ERBNE E 604,619 578,229
Current liabilities mEaE 1,796 2,229
Equity attributable to owners RARHEE AEEER
of the Company 366,174 351,340
Non-controlling interests IRV AE 2 244,116 234,226
Income A 26,417 33,032
Expenses 53 1,692 2,127
Profit and total comprehensive NEFE ) N 2 T W s
income for the year M 24,725 30,905
Profit and total comprehensive RRTEB AEE R R
income attributable to owners THEKFERRE
of the Company 14,835 18,543
Profit and total comprehensive FE 2 P e e FE A R 1 S
income attributable to the THKERRE
non-controlling interests 9,890 12,362
Profit and total comprehensive R F N 2 T W A
income for the year RG] 24,725 30,905
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from CREEBFTELEMIRS
operating activities WA G ) F 58 26 (8)
Net cash inflow from investing RETHMELNR S
activities MAFEE — —
Net cash inflow from financing REEEMEAMNE S
activities MAEEE — —
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BerA/ () F58 26 (8)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z — T —_—_F +_A=+—HIFE

41 Statement of financial position and reserves of 41
the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

KRR EMBERRRRAGHE

R|EHR - RARFBIRREZER B

2022 2021
g —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N IENGIE 6,863,406 6,882,419
Amounts due from a subsidiary (note a) JE U — RS B B A R B
(BMizxa) 248,496 234,053
7,111,902 7,116,472
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E b U FRI8 257 226
Amounts due from a subsidiary (note b) JE W — FEI B |88 A B 3K I8
(MizEDb) 48,697 37,335
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEED 4,167 3,680
53,121 41,241
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables H At < 5B 12,416 12,793
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note c) FEAT B B A R ZkE
(M3ECc) 370,288 363,603
Tax payable JE & 1A 663 657
383,367 377,053
Net current liabilities mEBEEREE (330,246) (335,812)
6,781,656 6,780,660
Capital and reserves B R FE
Share capital [N 6,291 6,291
Reserves (note d) & (B sEd) 6,775,365 6,774,369
6,781,656 6,780,660

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & &

41

42
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SoHETCASTBLEE

Statement of financial position and reserves of 41 FAATRUBMRRKRKFE (&)

the Company (continued)

Movement of the equity of the Company is as follows: RRAREERZEMT -

Share Merger Retained
premium reserve profits Total
B 1% 8 EotEE REE % F At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TFT ARBTRE AREFT ARBTE
At 1 January 2021 R-ZZE-_—%—HF—H 6,543,132 480 244,005 6,787,617
Loss and total comprehensive ZANFEEEIEZEZ T
expenses for the year ISR — (13,248) (13,248)
At 31 December 2021 R_FE——
+=-—A=+—H 6,543,132 480 230,757 6,774,369
Profit and total REE RN REEE S
comprehensive income M
for the year — 996 996
At 31 December 2022 A
+=-—A=+—H 6,543,132 480 231,753 6,775,365

Notes: ffzE -

(a) The amounts due from a subsidiary included amount of RMB78,000,000 (a) JE L BT /B8 A B K 7B B 5 A R 578,000,000 7T
(2021: RMB78,000,000) and RMB170,496,000 (2021: RMB156,053,000), which —E-—%F: AR¥78,000,0007T) kAR
were unsecured, carried fixed interest of 3.85% (2021: 3.85%) and 4.3% per 170,496,000 (Z B = —F: AR
annum, and repayable in March 2024 and December 2025 respectively. 156,053,0007T) * ¥ EIEA - 2 BILAE E F

FZ385E (Z T =—4F : 3.85F) K43EFT
B UEANRZZENE=AR=Z-H
FH—AEE-

(b) The amount due from a subsidiary was unsecured, non-interest bearing and (b) FEUR — RS B A B EE A - B RA
repayable within twelve months from the end of the reporting period. RERERARE+ @A NEE -

(@] The amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and (0) BB ARZEAEERR 2EREARE
repayable on demand. SKRIER -

(d) The Company's reserves available for distribution as at 31 December 2022 (d) R-ZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H  KQ&H
consisted of share premium, merger reserve and retained profits of DIRFEERERDEE AHEERRE R
RMB6,775,365,000 (2021: RMB6,774,369,000). F AR #6,775,365,000C (—ZF = —4F : A

R#56,774,369,0007T) °

Subsequent events 42 #%ESIE

On 28 December 2022, Shanghai Ongoing entered into a tenancy

agreement (the “New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy Agreement”) as
tenant with Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Co., Ltd as landlord in
relation to the Shanghai premises, located at 1618 Nanjing Xi Road,
Shanghai, the PRC known as Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Building
(EBABHWMES KE) The New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy
Agreement is effective after the approval of the transactions

contemplated under the New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy

Agreement by the Shareholders in the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20 March 2023.

RZZEZZF+ZA=Z+N\AH - EBAK
(ERAMAN B EBNERTES (ER
EX)BUNTE ESERAK16185 A
BLEBABABTMESKERN LEEEI5H
IV ERR(HLESAXEERE R
HD oM ELBAKXBEHERBENREL
ARABRR - ZE-_=F=A - +HETHK
HERAG L EN EEAKEERER
HIE N RET IR BEER -
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

T FEEETERE

Results

For the year ended 31 December

HE+_A=T—HILFE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—ECCE “E--F “ECZF “E-NE “E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT AREFL AREFL AREFL
Revenue WA 1,127,588 1,299,736 1,124,020 1,204,057 1,183,752
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners AREHRE AN
of the Company (B18)/ 57 (24,441) 143,393 212,748 (83,516) 338,074
(Losses)/earnings per share (RMB) R (BR)/BIARE)
— Basic —HXK (0.017) 0.098 0.145 (0.057) 0222
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
At 31 December R+—-A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—BCCR ke Sk ke ok 3:2 —E-NEF —Z-N\%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFL
Total assets BELE 14,448,660 15,032,372 14,589,901 14,424,611 13,744,799
Total liabilities BlEEE 3,649,796 4,252,026 4,058,202 4174702 3,194,851
Net assets BEFE 10,798,864 10,780,346 10,531,699 10,249,909 10,549,948
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,488,071 1,445,289 1,340,336 1,271,151 1,487,679
Net assets attributable to owners ARREE NERL
of the Company BEHE 9,310,793 9,335,057 9,191,363 8,978,758 9,062,269
Net assets per share (RMB) FREEFE(ARY) 7.37 7.36 7.19 7.00 7.20
Net assets per share attributable to FRAHE AEGER
owners of the Company (RMB) EEFE(ARE) 6.36 6.37 6.28 613 619
Number of shares issued BETRHHE 1,464,448500 | 1464448500 1464448500 1464448500  1,464,448500

FIRPEEEBRLAT —Z-_FFRH
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Particulars of Major Property

ETEMEFR

Approximate

gross floor area Attributable
(ground and interest to the
Address above) Existing use Group Lease term
HEREEE RE
bt (#ER L) BEEAR LR HEFH
sg.m.
7K
Investment property No. 1-2, Lane 2218, 80,003 Office leasing 100% Medium

Gonghexin Road,
Jing'an District,
Shanghai, PRC
wEME PR EETRRRE HHEBAE H Hf
FEFNH 3% 22185 1-255%
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